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Forward-looking statements

The matters discussed in this Form 10-K ane forward-looking statements are based on sumanagement expectations that involve
substantial risks and uncertainties, which coulaseaactual results to differ materially from theulés expressed in, or implied by, these
forward-looking statements. These statements catemified by the fact that they do not relatécsly to historical or current facts. They use
words such as "aim," "anticipate," "believe," "adll"estimate," "expect," "intend," "may," "plarfroject," "should," "will be," "will
continue,” "will likely result,” "would" and othexrords and terms of similar meaning in conjunctidthva discussion of future operating or
financial performance. You should read statemdrgsdontain these words carefully, because thegudgsour future expectations, contain
projections of our future results of operation®bour financial position or state other "forwambking" information.

We believe that it is important to communéour future expectations to our investors. Hawethere are events in the future that we are
not able to accurately predict or control. Thedagtisted under Item 1A, Risk Factors, as wekiag cautionary language in this Form 10-K,
provide examples of risks, uncertainties and evinaismay cause our actual results to differ maligrfrom the expectations we describe in
forward-looking statements. Although we believet thar expectations are based on reasonable assumspdictual results may differ materially
from those in the forward looking statements assallt of various factors, including, but not lintite, those described under Item 1A, Risk
Factors and elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Forward-looking statements speak only abefdate of this Form 10-K. Except as requiredentiederal securities laws and the rules and
regulations of the SEC, we do not have any intaentmd do not undertake, to update any forwardit@pktatements to reflect events or
circumstances arising after the date of this FobriK Llwhether as a result of new information, futawents or otherwise. As a result of these
risks and uncertainties, readers are cautionetbrigace undue reliance on the forward-lookingestagnts included in this Form 10-K or that
may be made elsewhere from time to time by or dralief us. All forward-looking statements attribbte to us are expressly qualified by
these cautionary statements.




PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are one of the largest distributorsesidential and non-residential roofing materialthie United States and Canada. We also
distribute other complementary building materiaisjuding siding, windows, specialty lumber produahd waterproofing systems for
residential and nonresidential building exterié& currently operate 175 branches in 35 stateSaanadian provinces, carrying up to 10,
SKUs and serving more than 40,000 customers. Wa Bading distributor of roofing materials in keyetropolitan markets in the Northeast,
Mid-Atlantic, Midwest, Central Plains, South anduowvest regions of the United States and in Eastamada.

For the fiscal year ended September 308 2@3idential roofing products comprised 42% af gales, non-residential roofing products

accounted for 41% of our sales, and siding, waterfiing systems, windows, specialty lumber and oéxgerior building products provided the
remaining 17% of our sales.

We also provide our customers a comprekerairay of value-added services, including:

. advice and assistance to contractors throughouwtdhstruction process, including product identifima, specification an
technical support;

job site delivery, rooftop loading and logisticakgices;

tapered insulation design and layout servi

metal fabrication and related metal roofing desigd layout service:

trade credit; an

marketing support, including project leads for caotors.

We believe the additional services we pte\strengthen our relationships with our custoraacsdistinguish us from our competition. 1
vast majority of orders require at least some e§¢hservices. Our ability to provide these servidBsiently and reliably can save contractors
time and money. We also believe that our value-ddeevices enable us to achieve attractive grad# prargins on our product sales. We
have earned a reputation for a high level of produailability, excellent employees, professionmaliand highguality service, including timel
accurate and safe delivery of products.

Our diverse customer base represents #isgt portion of the residential and non-residaimoofing contractors in most of our markets.
Reflecting the overall market for roofing produat® sell the majority of our products to roofinght@ctors that are involved on a local bas
the replacement, or re-roofing, component of thefing industry. We utilize a branch-based operatimggel in which branches maintain local
customer relationships but benefit from centraliigtttions such as information technology, accagtfinancial reporting, credit, purchasing,
legal and tax services. This allows us to providst@mers with specialized products and personaleal services tailored to a geographic
region, while benefiting from the resources andesefficiencies of a national distributor.

We have achieved our growth through a comatimn of seventeen strategic and complementanyisitiqns between 1998 and 2008,
opening new branch locations, acquiring brancheshaoadening our product offering. We have grovamfi$76.7 million in sales in fiscal ye
1998 to $1.785 billion in sales in fiscal year 20@®ich represents a compound annual growth ra8¥ @%. Our internal growth, which
includes growth from existing and newly opened bhas but excludes growth from acquired branches,5a2%6 per annum over the same
period. Acquired branches are excluded from infegrawvth measures until they have been under oureoship for at least four full fiscal
quarters at the start of the reporting period. Byithis eleven-year period, we opened thirty-thre branch locations (of which we have only
closed one), while our same store sales increasaderage of 1.6% per annum. Same store salesefined as the aggregate sales from
branches open for the entire comparable annuagerithin the eleven-year period. Income from afiens has increased from $5.3 million
in fiscal year 1998 to $94.7 million in fiscal ye2008, which represents a compound annual
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growth rate of 14.3%. We believe that our provesifiess model can deliver industry-leading growtth @perating profit margins.

In fiscal year 2008, we had internal growtt.3% and 35.7% in sales and income from opamatirespectively, over fiscal year 2007.
Fiscal year 2008 had one more business day as cethfmafiscal year 2007, which we believe posithvaffected annual existing market sales
by approximately 0.4%. We also opened one new bréowation, closed four locations and did not acgjany branches during fiscal year
2008.

History

Our predecessor, Beacon Sales Companywas.founded in Charlestown, Massachusetts (eop&tston) in 1928. In 1984, when our
former Chairman Andrew Logie acquired Beacon S@espany with other investors, Beacon operated thistebution facilities and
generated approximately $16 million in annual rexern August 1997, Code, Hennessy & Simmons LP.La Chicago-based private equity
fund, and certain members of management, purct2esadon Sales Company to use it as a platform toiectgading regional roofing
materials distributors throughout the United Statied Canada. At the time of the purchase by Codméksy and management, Beacon Sales
Company operated seven branches in New Englandemetated approximately $72 million of revenue afiguprimarily from the sale of
non-residential roofing products. Since 1997, weehmade seventeen strategic and complementarysitogps. Also since 1997, we have
opened a total of thirty-three new branches (ofclwhie have only closed one). We have also expaodedroduct offerings to offer more
residential roofing products and complementary r@atduilding materials and related services. Grategic acquisitions, branch expansions,
and product line extensions have increased thesiiyef both our customer base and local marketiscand generated cost savings through
increased purchasing power and reduced overheahsap as a percentage of net sales. We completritiarpublic offering ("IPO") and
became a public company in September 2004, andletadpa follow-on stock offering in December 2005.

We were incorporated in Delaware in 199dr fxincipal executive offices are located at Oad&eland Park Drive, Peabody, MA 01960
and our telephone number is (978) 535-7668. Owrhet website addressvisvw.beaconroofingsupply.com

U.S. Industry Overview

The U.S. roofing market, based upon martufac sales to distributors and others, was estichtt be approximately $13.7 billion in 20
which is the latest industry information availabdeus, and is projected to grow 2.6% annually tgio2012 to $15.6 billion. We believe this
rate of growth is within the range of the stablegdgerm growth rates in the industry over the gésyears.

The U.S. roofing market can be separattmitimo categories: the residential roofing marked ¢he non-residential roofing market. The
residential roofing market accounted for approxeha62% of the total U.S. market by unit volume ¥&6f total dollar demand) in 2007.
Through 2012, residential roofing constructionxpected to grow faster than non-residential roofingstruction as residential construction is
projected to rebound from current low levels.

Over 70% of expenditures in the roofing kearare for re-roofing projects, with the balaneénly for new construction. Re-roofing
projects are generally considered maintenance gpadrrexpenditures and are less likely than nevstroation projects to be postponed during
periods of recession or slow economic growth. Assallt, demand for roofing products is less vddatilan overall demand for construction
products.

Regional variations in economic activitflirence the level of demand for roofing productsoas the United States. Of particular
importance are regional differences in the level@f home construction and renovation, since thieleatial market for roofing products
accounts for approximately 62% of demand. Demogdcatpénds, including population growth and migratio
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contribute to regional variations in residentiatrégad for roofing products through their influeneeregional housing starts and existing home
sales.

Roofing distributors

Wholesale distribution is the dominant dlisttion channel for both residential and nonresti roofing products. Wholesale roofing
product distributors serve the important role @ilfeating the purchasing relationships betweerfimgpmaterials manufacturers and thousands
of contractors. Wholesale distributors also mamtacalized inventories, extend trade credit, giveduct advice and provide delivery and
logistics services.

Despite some recent consolidation, theingofhaterials distribution industry remains highlggmented. The industry is characterized |
large number of small and local regional particigsaAs a result of their small size, many of theséributors lack the corporate, operating and
IT infrastructure required to compete effectively.

Residential roofing market

Within the residential roofing market, tleeroofing market is more than twice the size @f tlew roofing market, accounting for
approximately 77% of the residential roofing deman&007, compared to a historic rate of about 6R&roofing demand is expected to
continue to exceed new roofing demand with sinslare through 2012.

Driving this demand for re-roofing is arirmgU.S. housing stock. Over one-third of the th&using stock was built prior to 1960, with
the median age of U.S. homes being over 30 yeashdlt shingles, which dominate the residentiabafing market with over an 80% share,
have an expected useful life of 15 to 20 yearsuflper of factors also generate re-roofing demarduding one-time weather damage (such
as Hurricanes Katrina and Rita which increased aehia2006), improvement expenditures and homeosvioeking to upgrade their homes.
Sales of existing homes can affect re-roofing dedmas some renovation decisions are made by splepsring their houses for sale and
others made by new owners within the first yeamar of occupancy.

Within the new construction portion of tlesidential roofing market, housing starts togethigh larger average roof sizes have supported
prior growth in new residential roofing demand. Nlegusing starts declined during 2006 through 2608, the pace may continue at the lower
levels or decline further in the near future.

Non-residential roofing market

Demand for roofing products used on nomdezgtial buildings is forecast to continue to gratxa similar rate compared to the previous
five years, but slower than the expected renewkddigrowth of roofing products used in resident@ahstruction. New non-residential roofing
has been the fastegtewing portion of the U.S. roofing market, but mahallenging economic conditions, including tighteedit markets ma
influence expenditures for non-residential roofinghe near term.

In 2007, re-roofing projects representepragpimately 78% of the total non-residential demdRe+oofing activity tends to be less cycli
than new construction and depends in part upotyfies of materials on existing roofs, their expédifespan and intervening factors such as
wind or water damage.

The non-residential roofing market includasoffice and commercial market, an industrialkeiand an institutional market. Office and
commercial roofing projects is the single largeshponent of the non-residential roofing market4#5while industrial roofing projects,
which represent 22% of non-residential roofing prcidsales, are expected to see the fastest gaiesraofing.

The institutional market is comprised priityaof healthcare and educational constructiorivéteds. This market will continue to benefit
from an aging baby boom population that will drive




increases in the nation's healthcare infrastrucageavell as increasing school enrollments thdtreguire new and replacement facilities.
Complementary building products

Demand for complementary building prodwstsh as siding, windows and doors for both thelesgial and non-residential markets also
grew in recent years. As in the roofing industmgimmdind for these products is driven by the repairramodeling market as well as the new
construction market.

These complementary products also sigmiflgacontribute to the overall building productsnket. In 2007, the U.S. siding market was
approximately $10.5 billion and the U.S. window alwbr industry was approximately $34.9 billion. Baff these markets are expected to ¢
in line with that of the roofing industry over thext several years.

Our Strengths

We believe the sales and earnings growthawe achieved over time has been and will contiadee driven by our primary competitive
strengths, which include the following:

. National scope combined with regional expertise We believe we are one of the three largest rgafiaterials distributors i
the United States and Canada. We utilize a braaskoperating model in which branches maintaial logstomer
relationships but benefit from centralized funci@uch as information technology, accounting, faiareporting, credit,
purchasing, legal and tax services. This allowysovide customers with specialized products gerdonalized local services
tailored to a geographic region, while benefitingni the resources and scale efficiencies of a naltidistributor.

. Diversified business model that reduces impact otenomic downturns. We believe that our business is meaningfully
protected in an economic downturn because of @ir boncentration in re-roofing, the relative nosedétionary nature of re-
roofing, the mix of our sales between residentia aon-residential products, our geographic antbooer diversity, and the
financial and operational ability we have to expand business and obtain market share.

. Superior customer service We believe that our high level of customer senaad support differentiates us from
competitors. We employ experienced salespeoplepsutnde advice and assistance in properly idemtgyproducts for various
applications. We also provide services such asaaddimely job site delivery, logistical suppornidamarketing assistance. We
believe that the services provided by our employ@gsove our customers' efficiency and profitagilithich, in turn,
strengthens our customer relationships.

. Strong platform for growth and acquisition. Since 1997, we have consistently increased revahtates well in excess of the
growth in the overall roofing materials distributiomdustry. We have expanded our business througtegic acquisitions, new
branch openings, branch acquisitions and the dfieaon of our product offering. We have succedigfacquired companies
and, for most of them, improved their financial apérating performance after acquisition.

. Sophisticated IT platform. All of our locations, except for one fabricatifatility, operate on the same managen
information systems. We have made a significane$tment in our information systems, which we beliave among the most
advanced in the roofing distribution industry. Tésgystems provide us with a consistent platforrosscall of our operations tf
helps us achieve additional cost reductions, gresterating efficiencies, improved purchasing, ipdcand inventory
management and a higher level of customer ser@uoesystems have substantial capacity to handléubure growth without
requiring significant additional investment.




. Industry -leading management team We believe that our key personnel, including bhamanagers, are among the rr
experienced in the roofing industry. Our executifficers, regional vice presidents and branch marsbave an average of o
11 years of roofing industry experience.

. Extensive product offering and strong supplier relégionships. We have a product offering of up to 10,000 SKidpresentin
an extensive assortment of high-quality brandedycts. We believe that our extensive product aiffghas been a significant
factor in attracting and retaining many of our onsérs. Because of our significant scale, produpedise and reputation in the
markets that we serve, we have established stiesigotthe major residential roofing materials nfanturers and are able to
achieve substantial volume discounts.

Growth Strategies

Our objective is to become the preferrgupdiar of roofing and other exterior building pradumaterials in the U.S. and Canadian markets
while continuing to increase our revenue base aaximize our profitability. We plan to attain thegeals by executing the following strateg

. Expand geographically through new branch openings Significant opportunities exist to expand our graphic focus b
opening additional branches in existing or contiggiegions. Since 1997, we and our acquired corapdrave successfully
entered numerous markets through greenfield expanSiur strategy with respect to greenfield oppdties is to open branches
within: (1) our existing markets; (2) where exigtioustomers have expanded into new regions; arid é¥as that have limited
or no acquisition candidates that are a good tit wur business model. At times, we have acquineallgistributors with one to
three branches to fill in existing regions. We oopened one branch in 2008 as recent businesstiomsdhave resulted in fewer
opportunities for greenfield expansion.

. Pursue acquisitions of regional marke-leading roofing materials distributors. Acquisitions are an important component of
our growth strategy. We believe that there areisggmt opportunities to grow our business throdggtiplined, strategic
acquisitions. With only a few large, well-capit&iz competitors in the industry, we believe we ocamtioue to build on our
distribution platform by successfully acquiring &aixhal roofing materials distributors. Between 8%nhd 2007, we successfully
integrated seventeen strategic and complementaryisations.

. Expand product and service offerings We believe that continuing to increase the biteaflbur product line and custorr
services are effective methods of increasing galesrrent customers and attracting new custonvéeswork closely with
customers and suppliers to identify new buildingdurcts and services, including windows, siding,esmatoofing systems,
insulation and metal fabrication. In addition, wedibve we can expand our business by introducindymts that we currently
offer in certain of our existing markets into soofeur other markets. In particular, we believet tha can expand non-
residential roofing sales in certain of our acqdiinearkets that currently sell mostly residentiaidarcts.

Products and Services
Products

The ability to provide a broad range ofduoats is essential in roofing materials distribntigVe carry one of the most extensive arrays of
high-quality branded products in the industry, dimgbus to deliver products to our customers oimeely basis. We are able to fulfill
approximately 95% of our orders through our in-ktmwentory as a result of the breadth and deptbuofinventory at our branches. Our
product portfolio includes residential and non-tlesitial roofing products as well as complementarijding products such as siding, windows
and specialty lumber products. Our product linesdasigned to primarily meet the requirements ¢ besidential and non-residential roofing
contractors.




Product Portfolio

Complementary building products

Residential Non-residential
roofing products roofing products Siding Windows/Doors
Asphalt shingle: Single-ply roofing Vinyl siding Vinyl windows
Synthetic slate and ti Asphalt Red, white and yellow Aluminum windows
Metal cedar siding Wood windows

Clay tile Modified bitumen Fiber cement siding  Turn-key windows
Concrete tile Built-up roofing Soffits Wood doors
Slate Cements and coatings House wraps and Patio doors
Nail base insulatio Insulation—flat stock Vapor barriers
Metal roofing and tapered Stone veneer
Felt Commercial fasteners
Wood shingles and  Metal edges and Other

shakes flashings Waterproofing systen
Nails and fastenel Skylights, smoke ven Specialty Lumber
Metal edgings and Building insulation Redwood .

flashings and roof hatches  Air barrier systems Red cedar decking
Prefabricated flashini  Sheet metal, including Gypsum Mahogany decking
Ridges and soffit ven and steel Patio covers )

Other accessories Fire treated plywood

Gutters and Synthetic decking
Other accessories Millwork

Custom millwork

The products that we distribute are supgbig the industry's leading manufacturers of highliy roofing materials and related products,
such as Alcoa, Carlisle, CertainTeed, EMCO, First&AF/Elk Materials, Johns Manville, Owens Cogpifiamko, and Revere Copper.

In the residential market, asphalt shinglemprise the largest share of the products we\a&lbelieve that we have also developed a
specialty niche in the residential roofing marketdistributing products such as highd shingles, copper gutters and metal roofingymrts] as
well as specialty lumber products for residentjglacations, including redwood, white and red ceslaingles, red cedar siding, and mahogany
and red cedar decking. Additionally, we distribgteters, downspouts, tools, nails, vinyl sidingndéws, decking and related exterior shelter
products to meet the needs of our residential ngofustomers.

In the non-residential market, single-ppfing systems comprise the largest share of cdymts. Our single-ply roofing systems consist
primarily of Ethylene Propylene Diene Monomer ($yetic rubber), or EPDM, and thermoplastic, or TRifing materials and related
components. In addition to the broad range of sipdy roofing components, we sell the insulatioat tils required as part of most non-
residential roofing applications. Our insulatiomgucts include tapered insulation, which has beleiglagrowth product line. Our remaining
non-residential products include metal roofing #adhings, fasteners, fabrics, coatings, roof dranodified bitumen, built-up roofing and
asphalt.

Services

We emphasize service to our customers. Waay a knowledgeable staff of in-house salespedple sales personnel possess in-depth
technical knowledge of roofing materials and amilans and are




capable of providing advice and assistance to aoturs throughout the construction process. Iriqaar, we support our customers with the
following value-added services:

advice and assistance throughout the constructimeeps, including product identification, specifioa and technical suppol
job site delivery, rooftop loading and logisticalgices;

tapered insulation design and layout servi

metal fabrication and related metal roofing desigd layout service:

trade credit; and

marketing support, including project leads for caotors.

Customers

Our diverse customer base consists of rinane 40,000 contractors, home builders, building@ss, and other resellers primarily in the
Southeast, Northeast, Central Plains, Midwest, I8oest and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United Stagswell as in Eastern Canada. Our
typical customer varies by end market, with reklivsmall contractors in the residential market amll to large-sized contractors in the non-
residential market. To a lesser extent, our custdrase includes general contractors, retailersoaiiding materials suppliers.

As evidenced by the fact that a significamtber of our customers have relied on us or ceolgressors as their vendor of choice for
decades, we believe that we have strong custortaioreships that our competitors cannot easily ldisp or replicate. No single customer
accounts for more than 0.70% of our revenues.

Sales and Marketing
Sales strategy

Our sales strategy is to provide a comprsive array of high-quality products and superue-added services to residential and non-
residential roofing contractors reliably, accuratahd on time. We fulfill approximately 95% of owarehouse orders through our in-stock
inventory as a result of the breadth and depttuofroventory at our local branches. We believe thatfocus on providing superior valaelder
services and our ability to fulfill orders accutgtend rapidly enables us to attract and retaitiacasrs.

Sales organization

We have attracted and retained an expezibnaales force of more than 1,000 people who aporesible for generating revenue at the |
branch level. The expertise of our salespeopleshgdpto increase sales to existing customers ahdes customers.

Each of our branches is headed by a braratager, who also functions as the branch's saleager. In addition, each branch generally
employs up to four outside salespeople and up/eifiside salespeople who report to their branchager. Branches that focus on the
residential market typically staff larger numbef®otside salespeople.

The primary responsibilities of our outsgidespeople are to prospect for new customerinarehase sales to existing customers. Our
outside salespeople accomplish these objectivesvigwing information from our proprietary LogicT#asoftware system, which extracts job
and bid information from construction reports arigeo industry news services. The system extraédsriration on construction projects in our
local markets from those industry services. Oncerestruction project is identified, our design &stimating team creates job quotes, which,
along with pertinent bid and job information, aeadily available to our salespeople through LoghcKr Our outside salespeople then contact
potential customers in an effort to solicit theitarest in participating with us in the project.
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Throughout this process, LogicTrack maintains amof quoting activity, due dates, and other datallow tracking of the projects and
efficient follow-up. By seeking a contractor to fpeer" with on a bid, we increase the likelihoodttthe contractor will purchase their roofing
materials and related products from us in the etrattthe contractor is selected for the project.

To complement our outside sales force, axeetbuilt a strong and technically proficient irssghles staff. Our inside sales force is
responsible for fielding incoming orders, providipgcing quotations and responding to customeriiegl Our inside sales force provides v
product expertise to our customers.

In addition to our outside and inside séteses, we represent certain manufacturers fdiqudar manufacturers' products. Currently, we
have developed relationships with Carlisle, JohasWlle, Owens Corning and Firestone on this ba8is.currently employ 31 representatives
who act as liaisons (on behalf of property ownarshitects, specifiers and consultants) betweeseth@ofing materials manufacturers and
professional contractors.

Marketing

In order to capitalize on the local customaationships that we have established and biefnefin the brands developed by our regional
branches, we have maintained the trade names dfahtise businesses that we have acquired. Thade trames—Alabama Roofing Supply,
Beacon Roofing Supply Canada Company, Beacon Ealegany, Best Distributing, Coastal Metals, Desl€hoice, Forest, GLACO, Grou
Bedard, JGA Corp., Lafayette Woodworks, North Céamtnmercial Roofing Systems, Mississippi Roofingp@y, Pacific Supply, Quality
Roofing Supply, Roof Depot, Roofing and Sheet Mefalulsa, Shelter Distribution, Southern Roof @enThe Roof Center, West End
Lumber and Wholesale Roofing Supply—are well-knawthe local markets in which the respective brasctompete and are associated with
the provision of high-quality products and customenvice.

As a supplement to the efforts of our sébese, each of our branches communicates witldeesial and non-residential contractors in
their local markets through newsletters, directimad the Internet. In order to build and strengtheationships with customers and vendors,
we sponsor and promote our own regional trade shahigh feature general business and roofing semsifte our customers and product
demonstrations by our vendors. In addition, wenatteumerous industry trade shows throughout themedgn which we compete, and we are
an active member of the National Roofing Contractdssociation, as well as regional contractorgi@asons.

Purchasing and Suppliers

Our status as a leader in our core geograparkets, as well as our reputation in the industas allowed us to forge strong relationships
with numerous manufacturers of roofing materiald slated products, including Alcoa, Carlisle, @aTeed, Firestone, GAF/EIK Materials,
Johns Manville, Owens Corning and Tamko.

We are viewed by our suppliers as a ketyidigor due to our industry expertise, significamrket share in our core geographic markets
and the substantial volume of products that weitisie. We have significant relationships with mtran 50 suppliers and maintain multiple
supplier relationships for each product line.

We manage the procurement of products girmur headquarters for the vast majority of thedpcts that we distribute. We believe this
enables us to purchase products more economitallyrhost of our competitors. Product is shippedatliy by the manufacturers to our
branches or customers.




Operations
Facilities

Our network of 175 branches serves metitggpareas in 35 states and three Canadian praxiites network has enabled us to
effectively and efficiently serve a broad custormnase and to achieve a leading market positionéh e&our core geographic markets.

Operations

Our branch-based model provides each locatith a significant amount of autonomy to openaithin the parameters of our overall
business model. Operations at each branch areetdito meet the local needs of their customersebaipg on market needs, branches carry
from about 1,000 to 10,000 SKUs.

Branch managers are responsible for sptesng and staffing activities, and have full oponal control of customer service and
deliveries. We provide our branch managers withiizant incentives that allow them to share in ginefitability of their respective branches
as well as the company as a whole. Personnel atosporate operations assist the branches witthpsiag, procurement, credit services,
information systems support, contract managemengunting and legal services, benefits adminigiraéind sales and use tax services.

Distribution/fulfillment process

Our distribution/fulfillment process is figited upon receiving a request for a contractojater or direct product order from a contractor.
Under a contract job order, a contractor typicediguests roofing or other construction materiats technical support services. The contractor
discusses the project's requirements with a salespand the salesperson provides a price quotiatidhe package of products and services.
Subsequently, the salesperson processes the owi@readeliver the products to the customer's juh si

Fleet

Our distribution infrastructure supportgagximately 600,000 deliveries annually. To accasipthis, we maintain a dedicated owned
fleet of 598 straight trucks, 252 tractors and #ailers. Nearly all of our delivery vehicles aguéped with specialized equipment, including
662 truck-mounted forklifts, cranes, hydraulic baoamd conveyors, which are necessary to delivetymts to rooftop job sites in an efficient
and safe manner.

Our branches focus on providing materialsustomers who are located within a two-hour radiutheir respective facilities. We typically
make deliveries five days per week.

Management information systems

We have fully integrated management infdiomasystems. Our systems are consistently impléedesicross our branches and acquired
businesses are promptly moved to our system foliguaicquisition. Our systems support every majarirgl operational function, except
payroll, providing complete integration of purchagireceiving, order processing, shipping, inventoanagement, sales analysis and
accounting. The same databases are shared withsy#tems, allowing our branches to easily acquisducts from other branches or schedule
deliveries by other branches, greatly enhancingcagtomer service. Our systems also include a stghied pricing matrix which allows us to
refine pricing by region, branch, type of custonoeistomer, or even a specific customer projecadadition, our systems allow us to monitor
branch and regional performance centrally. We lwaveralized many functions to leverage our sizeluising accounts payable, insurance,
employee benefits, vendor relations, and banking.




All of our branches are connected to ouMIBS400 computer network by secure Internet corioastor private data lines. We maintain a
second IBM AS400 as a disaster recovery systemirdodnation is backed up to this system througheadh business day. We have the
capability of electronically switching our domesbigerations to the disaster recovery system.

We have created a financial reporting pgekaat allows us to send branches information dagyuse to compare branch by branch
financial performance, which we believe is esséti@aperating each branch efficiently and morefigably. We have also developed a
benchmarking report which enables us to comparef allr branches' performance in 12 critical areas.

We can place purchase orders electronigétly some of our major vendors. The vendors thansmit their invoices electronically to us.
Our system automatically matches these invoicds thi related purchase orders and schedules paywiertiave the capability to handle
customer processing electronically, although mastamers prefer ordering through our sales force.

Government Regulations

We are subject to regulation by variousfat] state, provincial and local agencies. Thgsmeies include the Environmental Protection
Agency, Department of Transportation, Interstaten@@rce Commission, Occupational Safety and HeattmiAistration and Department of
Labor and Equal Employment Opportunity Commissite. believe we are in compliance in all materiapezgts with existing applicable
statutes and regulations affecting environmentalés and our employment, workplace health and viackpsafety practices.

Competition

Although we are among the three largesfimganaterials distributors in the United Stated &anada, the U.S. roofing supply industry is
highly competitive. The vast majority of our comigieh comes from local and regional roofing supgistributors, and, to a much lesser ext
other building supply distributors and "big boxtaiers. Among distributors, we compete againshalsnumber of large distributors and m:
small, local, privately-owned distributors. Thermipal competitive factors in our business incluolg, are not limited to, the availability of
materials and supplies; technical product knowlemigyd expertise; advisory or other service cap@slitpricing of products; and availability of
credit. We generally compete on the basis of tradityuwof our services, product quality, and, teeader extent, price. We compete not only for
customers within the roofing supply industry bigcefor personnel.

Employees

As of September 30, 2008, we had 2,464 eye@s, consisting of 727 in sales and marketing,i2dranch management, including
supervisors, 1,128 warehouse workers, helpers awers, and 361 general and administrative perdohiie believe that our employee
relations are good. Twenty-eight employees areeotlr represented by labor unions.

Order Backlog
Order backlog is not a material aspectwfliusiness and no material portion of our busimessabject to government contracts.
Seasonality

In general, sales and net income are htgheig our first, third and fourth fiscal quadewhich represent the peak months of
construction, especially in our branches in theheastern U.S. and in Canada. Our sales are stibyalower during the second quarter,
when we usually incur net losses. These quartkréfifations have diminished as we have diversifigal the southern regions of the United
States.
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Geographic Data
For geographic data about our businesaspleee Note 16 to our Consolidated Financial i8&its included elsewhere in this FormKLO-
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks and undetias described below and other information in@ddn this Form 10-K in evaluating
us and our business. If any of the events deschi&ulv occur, our business and financial resultsldde adversely affected in a material w
This could cause the trading price of our commaristo decline, perhaps significantly.

We may not be able to effectively integrate newly acquired businesses into our operations or achieve expected profitability from our
acquisitions.

Our growth strategy includes acquiring oftlistributors of roofing materials and complementaroducts. Acquisitions involve numerous
risks, including:

Unforeseen difficulties in integrating operatiotes;hnologies, services, accounting and perso
diversion of financial and management resourceas fgisting operation:

unforeseen difficulties related to entering geograpegions where we do not have prior experience;
potential loss of key employees;

unforeseen liabilities associated with businessgsieed; and

inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaetuisition or investment costs.

As a result, if we fail to evaluate and @xte acquisitions properly, we might not achievedhticipated benefits of these acquisitions, and
we may incur costs in excess of what we anticipeitese risks may be greater in the case of lamgrisitions.

We may not be able to successfully identify acquisition candidates, which would slow our growth rate.

We continually seek additional acquisitzandidates in selected markets and from time te g#mgage in exploratory discussions with
potential candidates. If we are not successfuhidirfig attractive acquisition candidates that we aequire on satisfactory terms, or if we
cannot complete acquisitions that we identifysitunlikely that we will sustain the historical grilwates of our business.

An inability to obtain the products that we distribute could result in lost revenues and reduced margins and damage relationships with
customers.

We distribute roofing and other exterioilthlng materials that are manufactured by a nunafenajor suppliers. Although we believe that
our relationships with our suppliers are strong #ad we would have access to similar products fcompeting suppliers should products be
unavailable from current sources, any disruptioaunsources of supply, particularly of the moshowonly sold items, could result in a loss of
revenues and reduced margins and damage relapsnsith customers. Supply shortages may occurrasudt of unanticipated demand or
production or delivery difficulties. When shortagecur, roofing material suppliers often allocateducts among distributors.

Loss of key personnel or our inability to attract and retain new qualified personnel could hurt our ability to operate and grow successfully.

Our future success is highly dependent uperservices of Robert Buck, Chief Executive Gffiand Chairman of the Board, Paul
Isabella, President and Chief Operating Officed Bavid Grace, Chief Financial Officer. Our succedlscontinue to depend to a significant
extent on our executive
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officers and key management personnel, includingegional vice presidents. We do not have key hf@imnsurance covering any of our
executive officers. We may not be able to retainexecutive officers and key personnel or attraclittonal qualified management. The loss of
any of our executive officers or other key managenpersonnel, or our inability to recruit and ratgualified personnel, could hurt our ability
to operate and make it difficult to execute ouruasitjon and internal growth strategies.

A changein vendor rebates could adversely affect our income and gross margins.

The terms on which we purchase product freamy of our vendors entitle us to receive a rebated on the volume of our purchases.
These rebates effectively reduce our costs forymnsd If market conditions change, vendors may emhhe change the terms of some or all of
these programs. Although these changes would fexttahe net recorded costs of product alreadytmsed, it may lower our gross margins
products we sell or income we realize in futurdquis.

Cyclicality in our business could result in lower revenues and reduced profitability.

We sell a portion of our products for nesidential and non-residential construction. Thengjth of these markets depends on new
housing starts and business investment, which amaciion of many factors beyond our control, irdihg credit availability, interest rates,
employment levels, and consumer confidence. Dowstirr the regions and markets we serve could r@sldtver revenues and, since many of
our expenses are fixed, lower profitability. Newubimg starts declined during 2006 through 2008thegace may continue at the lower levels
or decline further and commercial constructiomistj which has been high in recent years, couldide as well. More recently, the
availability of commercial credit tightened, whiotay have a negative affect on current and futurel$eof construction, especially new non-
residential construction.

Seasonality in the construction and re-roofing industry generally resultsin second quarter losses.

Our second quarter is typically adversélgaed by winter construction cycles and weattedtgwns in colder climates as the level of
activity in the new construction and reefing markets decreases. Because many of ounsgpeemain relatively fixed throughout the year
generally record a loss during our second quafterexpect that these seasonal variations will oaetin the future.

If we encounter difficulties with our management information systems, we could experience problems with inventory, collections, customer
service, cost control and business plan execution.

We believe our management information systare a competitive advantage in maintaining eadérship position in the roofing
distribution industry. If we experience problemshadur management information systems, we coul@eapce, among other things, product
shortages and/or an increase in accounts receivatyefailure by us to properly maintain our managat information systems could
adversely impact our ability to attract and serwstomers and could cause us to incur higher opgratists and experience delays in the
execution of our business plan.

An impairment of goodwill and/or other intangible assets could reduce net income.

Acquisitions frequently result in the redimg of goodwill and other intangible assets. Apteenber 30, 2008, goodwill represented
approximately 33% of our total assets. Goodwitigslonger amortized for financial reporting purpps@d is subject to impairment testing at
least annually using a fair-value based approakhb.identification and measurement of goodwill innpgegnt involves the estimation of the fair
value of our single reporting unit. Our accountiogimpairment contains uncertainty because managémust use judgment in determining
appropriate assumptions to be

12




used in the measurement of fair value. We deterfiaiineralue using a market approach to value oiriass.

We evaluate the recoverability of gooddidll impairment in between our annual tests whemsver changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of goodwill may not beoregrable. Any impairment of goodwill will reducetriecome in the period in which the
impairment is recognized.

We might need to raise additional capital, which may not be available, thus limiting our growth prospects.

We may require additional equity or furtidebt financing in order to consummate an acqaisitir for additional working capital for
expansion or if we suffer losses. In the eventtmithl equity or debt financing is unavailable & we may be unable to expand or make
acquisitions and our stock price may decline assalt of the perception that we have more limitehgh prospects.

Further disruptionsin the capital and credit markets may impact the availability of credit and business conditions.

If the financial institutions that have emtled credit commitments to us are adversely &ffielay the conditions of the capital and credit
markets, they may become unable to fund borromimgier those credit commitments, which could havadwerse impact on our financial
condition and our ability to borrow funds, if neddéor working capital, acquisitions, capital exgéares and other corporate purposes.

Continued market disruptions could causater economic downturns, which may lead to loveenahd for our products and increased
incidence of customers' inability to pay their agets. Further, bankruptcies or similar events bst@mmers may cause us to incur bad debt
expense at levels higher than historically expegen Also, our suppliers may potentially be impdgctausing disruption or delay of product
availability. These events would adversely impagtresults of operations, cash flows and finangaaition.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We lease 186 facilities, including our hgaarters and other support facilities, throughbetWnited States and Eastern Canada. These
leased facilities range in size from 3,600 squeet fo 134,000 square feet. We sublease threditxciln addition, we own twelve
sales/warehouse facilities located in Manchestew Nampshire; Reading, Pennsylvania; Montreal, @uéB); Sainte-Foy, Quebec; Delson,
Quebec; Salisbury, Maryland; Hartford, Connecti€ranston, Rhode Island; Lancaster, Pennsylvaaéksonville, Florida and Easton,
Maryland. These owned facilities range in size frblyb00 square feet to 54,000 square feet. Alhefawned facilities are mortgaged to our
senior lenders. We believe that our propertiesragood operating condition and adequately servecourent business operations.
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As of November 1, 2008, our 175 branchdswawith multiple leased facilities, and 8 othacflities were located in the following states
and provinces:

Number of

State Branches  Other
Alabama
Arkansas
California
Connecticu
Delaware
Florida
Georgia
Illinois
Indiana

lowa

Kansas
Kentucky
Louisiana
Maine
Maryland
Massachuseti
Michigan
Minnesota
Mississippi
Missouri
Nebraske
New Hampshire
New Jerse!
New York
North Caroling
Ohio
Oklahoma
Pennsylvanii
Rhode Islanc
South Carolin¢
Tennesse
Texas
Vermont
Virginia

West Virginia
Subtota—U.S.

Canadian Provinces
Manitoba

Ontario

Quebec
Subtota—Canada

Total
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we are involved in lawsuhat are brought against us in the normal eofdusiness. We are not currently a party to
any legal proceedings that would be expected, ritttkvidually or in the aggregate, to have a matexdverse effect on our business or

financial condition.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matters were submitted to a vote ofsmaurity holders during the fourth quarter of tearyended September 30, 2008.
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PART Il

ITEM5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, R ELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock trades on The NASDAQ Gl&sect Market under the symbol "BECN". The follag/ table lists quarterly
information on the price range of our common stbaked on the high and low reported sale pricesdfocommon stock as reported by
NASDAQ for the periods indicated belo

High Low

Year ended September 30, 200°

First quarte! $24.1¢ $18.6¢

Second quarte $21.5C $14.97

Third quartel $18.8¢ $15.5¢

Fourth quarte $17.12 $ 9.6¢
Year ended September 30, 2008:

First quarte $12.17 $ 7.0

Second quarte $10.0C $ 7.3C

Third quartel $12.97 $ 9.5¢

Fourth quarte $17.7:  $10.0¢

There were 31 holders of record of our camrstock as of November 1, 2008.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

No purchases of our equity securities weagle by us or any affiliated entity during the tbuguarter of the year ended September 30,
2008.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends on our comstock and do not anticipate paying dividendbhéforeseeable future. Our board of
directors currently intends to retain any futurengagys for reinvestment in our business. Our rewg\credit facilities currently prohibit the
payment of dividends without the prior written censof our lender. Any future determination to piyidends will be at the discretion of our
board of directors and will be dependent upon eaults of operations and cash flows, our finanmisition and capital requirements, general
business conditions, legal, tax, regulatory and@mtractual restrictions on the payment of divitigrand any other factors our board of
directors deems relevant.

Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulatotal shareholder return (including reinvestmdndividends) of Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.'s common stock based on its markeepribeginning with the date our stock first traded each fiscal year thereafter, with (i) the
Nasdaq Index and (ii) the S&P 1500 Building Produntdex.
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Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
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The line graph assumes that $100 was iedastour common stock, the Nasdaq Index and thie $800 Building Products Index on
September 23, 2004. The closing price of our comstock on September 30, 2008 was $15.62. The gtood performance of Beacon
Roofing Supply, Inc.'s common stock depicted indhegph above represents past performance onlysamat inecessarily indicative of future
performance.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

You should read the following selected ficial information together with our financial statents and related notes and "Management's
discussion and analysis of financial condition eeglilts of operations" also included in this Foi®aKL We have derived the statement of
operations data for the years ended Septembel088, September 30, 2007, and September 30, 2086harbalance sheet information at
September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007, frorawrlited financial statements included in this FAO¥K. We have derived the statements
of operations data for the years ended Septemh&@0®% and September 25, 2004, and the balanceddiaeat September 30, 2006,
September 24, 2005 and September 25, 2004, frorawlited financial statements not included in Fosm 10-K.

Statement of operations data

Fiscal year endec
September 30,

September 30, September 30, 2006 September 24, September 25,
(Dollars in Thousands) 2008 2007 (53 weeks) 2005 2004
Net sales $ 1,784,49!' $ 1,645,78' $ 1,500,63 $ 850,92¢$ 652,90¢
Cost of products sol 1,364,488 1,271,86! 1,136,501 643,73 487,20(
Gross profil 420,00t 373,91 364,13 207,19¢ 165,70¢
Operating expenses (includes stock-based compensatpense of $4,86
$4,933, $3,222, $690 and $10,299 for the yearsce2@88, 2007, 2006
2005, and 2004 respective! 325,29¢ 304,10¢ 263,83t 146,47¢ 131,03
Income from operation 94,71( 69,80¢ 100,30: 60,71¢ 34,67
Interest expens (25,909 (27,439 (19,46)) (4,917 (11,62)
Change in value of warrant derivatives — — — (24,997)

Loss on early retirement of de (915) (3,285

Income taxe: (28,50() (17,09%) (31,529 (21,97¢) (10,129
Net income (loss $ 40,30¢$ 2527¢$ 4931:% 3291°% (15,35%
Net income (loss) per sha
Basic $ 091% 057 % 11 % 082 % (0.57)
Diluted $ 0.9C $ 0.5€ $ 112 $ 0.8C $ (0.57)
Weighted average shares outstanc
Basic 44,346,29 44,083,91 42,903,27 39,716,93 26,857,80
Diluted 44,959,35 44,971,93 44,044,76 41,118,94 26,857,80
Other financial and operating da
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 3424(% 3286:% 23,79 % 8,74t $ 6,922
Capital expenditures (excluding acquisitio $ 573¢$ 23,13:$ 19,06i$% 10,811 % 5,127
Number of branches at end of per 17t 17¢ 15¢ 84 67

(@B The change in value of warrant derivatives repreesechanges in the fair market value of certainraras previously issued in
connection with debt financings that were redeeore@eptember 28, 2004.
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Balance sheet dat:

September 3C September 3C September 3C September 24 September 2E

(In Thousands) 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Cash and cash equivalel $ 26,03t$ 646¢% 18478 — 3 =
Total asset $1,067,811 $1,006,66! $ 839,89( $ 386,98 $ 301,49

Current debt and warrant derivative liabili

Cash overdraf $ — $ — $ —$ 6107 $ 3,69

Warrant derivative liabilitie: — — — — 34,33t
Borrowings under revolving lines of credit, curr@uairtions of lon-term debi

and other obligation 19,92¢ 34,77: 6,65 6,34¢ 50,74«

$ 1992¢$ 3477 % 6,651 % 12458 $ 88,77¢

Long-term debt, net of current portior

Borrowings under revolving lines of cre: $ —$ — $ 229,75. $ 63,76¢ $ —
Senior notes payable and other obligati 332,500  343,00( 69,28: 20,15¢ 22,66(
Junior subordinated notes paya — — — — 17,07:
Subordinated notes payable to related parties ates payable to stockholde — — — 29,44;
Other lon¢-term obligation: 25,14: 31,27( 10,61( 1,66¢ 97¢€
$ 357,640 % 374,27( $ 309,64: $ 85591 $ 70,14¢

Stockholders' equit $ 366,70: $ 323,85( $ 291,16¢ $ 178,74! $ 38,24¢
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjiomctvith our consolidated financial statements aelhted notes and other financial
information appearing elsewhere in this Form 10kKaddition to historical information, the followgndiscussion and other parts of this
Form 1(-K contain forward-looking information that involveisks and uncertainties. Our actual results cadiffier materially from those
anticipated by this forward-looking information dteethe factors discussed under "Risk factors, "rifard-looking statements” and elsewhere
in this Form 10-K. Certain tabular information witlot foot due to rounding.

Overview

We are one of the largest distributorsesidential and non-residential roofing materialthie United States and Canada. We are also a
distributor of other building materials, includisgling, windows, specialty lumber products and watmfing systems for residential and
nonresidential building exteriors. We purchase potsl from a large number of manufacturers and themnibute these goods to a customer
consisting of contractors and, to a lesser extgnteral contractors, retailers and building maltetiapliers.

We carry up to 10,000 SKUs through 175 bhas in the United States and Canada. In fiscal3@@8, approximately 94% of our net
sales were in the United States. We stock oneeoifitbst extensive assortments of high-quality brdmaeducts in the industry, enabling us to
deliver products to our customers on a timely basis

Execution of the operating plan at eacbwfbranches drives our financial results. Revemmesmpacted by the relative strength of the
residential and non-residential roofing marketsserve. We allow each of our branches to developwts marketing plan and mix of products
based upon its local market. We differentiate duesefrom the competition by providing customensegs, including job site delivery, tapered
insulation layouts and design and metal fabricatan by providing credit. We consider customeaitiehs and our employees' knowledge of
roofing and exterior building materials to be imiaait to our ability to increase customer loyaltyl amaintain customer satisfaction. We invest
significant resources in training our employeesdrles techniques, management skills and produetliedge. While we consider these
attributes important drivers of our business, wetiowally pay close attention to controlling opérgtcosts.

Our growth strategy includes both intemgrawth (opening new branches, growing sales witktieg customers, adding new customers
and introducing new products) and acquisition ghov@ur main acquisition strategy is to target makkaders in geographic areas that we
presently do not serve. Our April 2007 acquisitidMNorth Coast Commercial Roofing Systems, Inacigaample of this approach. North C¢
is a leading distributor of commercial roofing ®ret and related accessories, based in Twinsbuig, ®hich had 16 locations in Ohio,
lllinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Michigan, New York, Resylvania and West Virginia at the time of theusijion. There was minimal branch
overlap with our existing operations. We also hagguired smaller companies to supplement branchioge within an existing region. Our
May 2007 acquisition of Wholesale Roofing SuppMW/RS"), a single location distributor of residentiald commercial roofing products
located in Knoxville, Tennessee, which we integitat#o our Best Distributing region in the Carolngs an example of such an acquisition.
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General

We sell all materials necessary to instajplace and repair residential and non-residerdizfs, including:

shingles;

single-ply roofing;

metal roofing and accessories;
modified bitumen;

built up roofing;

insulation;

slate and tile

fasteners, coatings and cements;
other roofing accessorie

We also sell complementary building prodistich as:

vinyl siding;

doors, windows and millwork;
wood and fiber cement sidin
residential insulation; ar
waterproofing system:

The following is a summary of our net sddggproduct group for the last three full fiscabys

Year Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2007 2006

Net Net Net

Sales Mix Sales Mix Sales Mix
Residential roofing produc $ 756,32: 42.8% $ 691,69: 42.(%$ 731,70: 48.8%
Non-residential roofing produc 725,90( 40.7% 605,85 36.€%  448,04. 29.%
Complementary building produs 302,27- 16.%%  348,23! 21.2%  320,89: 21.4%

$1,784,49"  100.(% $1,645,78"  100.(% $1,500,63°  100.(%

We have over 40,000 customers, none oflmtgpresents more than 0.70% of our net sales. Maayr customers are small to mid-size
contractors with relatively limited capital resoesc We maintain strict credit approval and revi@liges, which has helped to keep losses -
customer receivables within our expectations. Rerseven years prior to 2008, bad debts averaged@mately 0.3% of net sales. In 2008,
we experienced an increase to almost 0.6% of hes,sahich is still within our tolerances in coreidtion of the tougher economic and credit

climate.

Our expenses consist primarily of the @fgiroducts purchased for resale, labor, fleetupaacy, and selling and administrative expel
We compete for business and may respond to corivegpitessures by lowering prices in order to manearr market share.

In September 2007, we amended our by-lavebédnge our year-end date to September 30 offesacth year. Prior to that amendment, we
used a 52/53 week fiscal year ending on the lastr@ay of September. Our fiscal years ended SemeBl 2008 ("2008") and September 30,
2007 ("2007") contained 52 weeks, while the fisezdr ended September 30, 2006 ("2006") containesezks.

Since 1997, we have made seventeen sttaadicomplementary acquisitions and opened 33tmamches. We opened six branches in

2006, eight in 2007 and one in 2008. We slowed#ee of new
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branch openings in 2008, mostly as a result ostbe@down in our business experienced in 2007. Wiempen a new branch, we transfer a

certain level of existing business from an existingnch to the new branch. This allows the newditdna commence with a base business and
also allows the existing branch to target othemghocopportunities.

In managing our business, we considerralivth, including the opening of new branches, tarbernal growth unless it is a result of an
acquisition. In our management's discussion antysisaof financial condition and results of opesat, when we refer to growth in existing
markets, we include growth from existing and newfened branches but exclude growth from acquiraddbres until they have been under

our ownership for at least four full fiscal quageit the start of the reporting period. Our avel@gaual internal sales growth over the four fi
years since our IPO was 6.4

Results of operations
The following discussion compares our ressof operations for 2008, 2007 and 2006.

The following table shows, for the periaddicated, information derived from our consolidhtatements of operations expressed as a
percentage of net sales for the periods preseRtrdentages may not foot due to rounding.

Year ended
September 3C  September 3C  September 24

2008 2007 2006
Net sales 100.% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of products sol 76.5 77.5 75.7
Gross profit 23.t 22.7 24.:
Operating expenst 18.2 18.5 17.€
Income from operation 5.8 4.2 6.7
Interest expens (1.5 1.7 1.3
Income before income tax 3.9 2.6 5.4
Income taxe: (2.6) (2.0 (2.7
Net income 2.3% 1.5% 3.2%

2008 compared to 2007

The following table shows a summary of msults of operations for 2008 and 2007, brokenrdbyexisting markets and acquired
markets.
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For the Fiscal Years Endec

Existing Markets Acquired Markets Consolidated

(in thousands) 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Net sales $1,508,56: $1,489,29° $275,93. $156,48( $1,784,49! $1,645,78!
Gross profil 373,92¢ 349,34: 46,07¢ 24,57+ 420,00¢ 373,91
Gross margit 24.&% 23.5% 16.1% 15.1% 23.5% 22.1%
Operating expens 283,52: 282,72 41,77 21,38: 325,29¢ 304,10¢
Operating expenses as a % of net 18.8% 19.(% 15.1% 13.7% 18.2% 18.5%
Operating incom: $ 9040t $ 6661¢ $ 430z $ 3,192 $ 94,71( $ 69,80¢
Operating margil 6.C% 4.5% 1.€% 2.C% 5.3% 4.2%

Net Sales

Consolidated net sales increased $138libmibr 8.4%, to $1,784.5 million in 2008 from $45.8 million in 2007. Sales from acquired
markets increased $119.4 million, while existinglkess saw internal growth of $19.3 million, or 1.3¥here was one additional business day
in 2008 as compared to 2007, which we believe as®d annual existing market sales by approxim&tdi6. During 2008, we opened one
new branch and closed four branches. The prodoctpgsales for our existing markets were as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

Existing Markets

2008 2007 Change
(dollars in millions) Net Sales Mix Net Sales Mix
Residential roofing produc $ 736.1 48.¢% $ 684.f 46.0% $ 51.€ 7.5%
Non-residential roofing produc 479.¢ 31.8% 463.] 31.1% 16.5 3.5%
Complementary building produc 293.1 19.% 341.7 22.% (48.€) (14.29%

$1,508.¢  100.09% $1,489.: 100.09% $ 19.2 1.3%

Note: Total 2008 existing market sales of $1,508ilion plus 2008 sales from acquired markets of%2 million equal $1,784.5 million «

total 2008 sales. Our acquired markets had praghactp sales of $20.2, $246.5 and $9.2 million sidential roofing products, non-residential
roofing products, and complementary building praduespectively for 2008. Total 2007 existing nedrgales of $1,489.3 million plus 2007
sales from acquired markets of $156.5 million ediab45.8 million of total 2007 sales. Our acquinegrkets had product group sales of $7.2,
$142.8 and $6.5 million in residential roofing puats, non-residential roofing products, and comgletary building products, respectively for
2007. We believe the existing market informationseful to investors because it helps explain dogarowth or decline.

Our existing market sales were affectedheyfollowing factors:

a rapid rise in prices beginning in February 2@&ecially in residential roofing products;
strong re-roofing activity in storm-affected regéon

continued strength in n-residential roofing activity in most markets; &

one additional business day in 2008 as compar26Qa.
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partially offset by the negative impact of:

. continued weakness in new residential roofing #&gtim most markets; and
. lower complementary product sales in most marlkesigecially where we have had historically higheelg of new residential
construction.

Gross Profit

2008 2007 Change
(dollars in millions)
Gross profit $420.C $373.¢ $46.1 12.7%
Existing market: 373.¢ 349.:. 24¢ 7.C%
Gross margir 23.5% 22.7% 0.8%
Existing market: 24.8% 23.5% 1.3%

In 2008, existing markets' gross profireased $24.6 million or 7.0% as compared to 200iMevour acquired markets' gross profit
increased $21.5 million. Our overall gross margicréased to 23.5% from 22.7%, while our existingk®ts' gross margin increased to 24.8%
in 2008 from 23.5% in 2007. These increases werglynim our residential roofing products and resdlprincipally from the pass-through of
increases in shingle prices as we were notifiea sdries of price increases from our vendors, wivighvere experiencing beginning in
February 2008. However, our cost of goods soldhdidincrease at the same time or rate due to faletaying programs and the lower cost
inventory on hand before the price increases. Qistieg market gross margin in non-residential negfand complementary products,
excluding vendor incentives, which represents nuoiced gross margin, was relatively consistenh\2@07. If price increases do not continue
in the future, existing market gross margins calédrease somewhat from current levels. The effettieoprice increases was partially offse
our overall gross margins by an increase in thessailix of traditionally lower gross margin nogsidential roofing products, while gross ma
in our existing markets benefited from an increafseesidential roofing products in our existing ketrproduct sales mix, which have higher
gross margins than our other products. We currentbect our future overall gross margins to flutgtfaeom 23% to 24% depending on our
product mix and competitive conditions.

Operating Expenses

2008 2007 Change
(dollars in millions)
Operating expenst $325.2 $304.1 $21.z 7.C%
Existing market: 283.f  282.7 0.8 0.2%
Operating expenses as a % of s, 18.2% 18.52%  (0.3)%
Existing market: 18.€% 19.% (0.2)%

Our existing markets' operating expensergeased by only $0.8 million or 0.3% to $283.5 imillin 2008 from $282.7 million in 2007,
while our acquired markets' operating expensegaserd $20.4 million. The following factors were liding causes of the change in our
existing market operating expenses:

. an increase in bad debts of $4.4 million, as weegrpced higher wri-offs and increased our reserves due to the econamal
credit climate; and
. an increase of $2.5 million in selling and warel®agpenses due primarily to higher transportatigreases resulting from

significantly higher petroleum costs and from higbales related costs, including credit card fees;
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mostly offset by:

. a decrease of $2.9 million from both expense redndhitiatives and the benefit from leveragingteer expenses over existing
and acquired markets;

. reduced depreciation and amortization of $2.0 amillilue to lower amortization of intangible assei somewhat fror
substantially lower capital expenditures in 2008] a

. payroll and related costs decreased by $1.2 mifidgmarily from a lower headcount and favorable mabinsurance claims,

partially offset by higher incentive-based pay anafit sharing.

Existing markets' operating expenses axeeptage of net sales decreased to 18.8% in 200819.0% in 2007 as we were able to
control our variable costs and leverage our fixest Overall operating expenses decreased to 18 2%t sales from 18.5% due to the same
factors and also from blending in the lower opegagxpense level of North Coast. In 2008, we expéastotal of $8.5 million for the
amortization of intangible assets recorded undect@se accounting in our existing markets comparé 0.3 million in 2007, while acquired
markets expensed $6.5 million and $3.9 millionZ0608 and 2007, respectively.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $1.5 millid2&®9 million in 2008 from $27.4 million in 2007rimarily from lower levels of debt. Average
interest rates during 2008 also decreased somdvwamatthe prior year, which affected interest exgeas our variable-rate debt.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense increased to $28.5anill 2008 from $17.1 million in 2007. Our 2008exffive income tax rate was 41.4%,
compared to our 2007 effective income tax rate0o8%. The rate increase was primarily due to 2@f)gstments of previously accrued incc
taxes related to previously filed tax returns thenefited the 2007 income tax rate. We expectaturé effective income tax rate to fluctuate
around 41.0%, depending primarily upon the resafltsur operations in Canada and in the variougstat which we operate.

2007 compared to 2006

The following table shows a summary of msults of operations for 2007 and 2006, brokenrdbyexisting markets and acquired
markets.

For the Fiscal Years Ended

Existing Markets Acquired Markets Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
(in thousands)
Net sales $970,45° $1,019,85! $675,32¢ $480,77¢ $1,645,78! $1,500,63
Gross profil 227,27 247,13 146,64: 117,00( 373,91 364,13
Gross margit 23.2% 24.2% 21.1% 24.2% 22.1% 24.%
Operating expenst 157,94¢ 162,20 146,16: 101,63: 304,10¢ 263,83t
Operating expenses as a % of net ¢ 16.2% 15.% 21.€% 21.1% 18.5% 17.€%
Operating incom: $69326 $ 8493t $ 48C $1536¢f $ 69,80¢ $ 100,30:
Operating margi 7.1% 8.2% 0.1% 3.2% 4.2% 6.7%

Net Sales

Consolidated net sales increased $145llomibr 9.7%, to $1,645.8 million in 2007 from $00.6 million in 2006. Sales from acquired
markets increased $194.5 million, while existing kets
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saw internal contraction of $49.4 million, or 4.8¥here were four fewer business days in 2007 agaoed to 2006, which we believe

decreased annual existing market sales by appreeliynb 5%. During 2007, we added 17 branches tHr@gguisitions, opened eight new

branches and closed two branches. The product gralep for our existing markets were as follows:

For the Fiscal Years Ended

Existing Markets % Change Baset

On Average Sale

2007 2006 Change Per Business Da
Net Sale: Mix Net Sales Mix
(dollars in millions)
Residential roofing produc $399.: 41.1% $ 435.1 42.7% $(35.¢) (8.2% (6.8)%
Non-residential roofing produc 365.7 37.1%  356.1 34% 9.6 2.1% 4.2%
Complementary building produr ~ 205.£ 21.2%  228.% 22.%% (23.2) (10.1)% (8.7%
$970.5  100.% $1,019.¢ 100.(% $(49.9 (4.8% 3.9%

Note: Total 2007 existing market sales of $970.Bioni plus 2007 sales from acquired markets of $87¥8illion equal $1,645.8 million of tot
2007 sales. Our acquired markets had product gsalgs of $300.0, $226.2 and $149.1 million in resichl roofing products, non-residential
roofing products, and complementary building praduespectively for 2007. Total 2006 existing nedrgales of $1,019.9 million plus 2006
sales from acquired markets of $480.8 million e@igb00.6 million of total 2006 sales. We beliele éxisting market information is useful to

investors because it helps explain organic growtthealine.

Our existing market sales were affectedhgyfollowing factors:

. a substantial decline in new residential constamgtespecially in the mid-Atlantic states;

. a significant slowdown in re-roofing and reconstiot activities in certain areas of Texas, the @Gdfst and Southeastern
United States affected by Hurricanes Katrina arte;Ri

. four fewer business days; a

. harsher winter conditions this year in the Nortihe@anada, and Midwes

partially offset by the positive impact of:

. continued growth in nc-residential roofing; an
. six new branches opened in existing markets siepteber 30, 200!

Gross Profit

2007 2006 Change
(dollars in millions)
Gross profil $373.¢ $364.1 $ 9.8 2.7%
Existing market: 227.: 2471 (19.¢) (8.0%
Gross margit 22.1% 24.2% (1.6)%
Existing market: 23.2% 24.2% (0.8)%

In 2007 our existing markets' gross praéitlined 8.0% or $19.8 million compared to 200&pike the six new branches, while acquired
markets' gross profit increased $29.6 million. Eris markets' gross margin decreased to 23.4% 07 2@m 24.2% in 2006. The existing
market decrease was caused by an increase in dtugeonditions and generally lower constructiatity. We experienced the highest
margin compression in the markets that experietieedenefit of additional hurricane activity in B8nd in our regions with higher sales mix

of new residential roofing products. Our overabsgg
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margin has also decreased due primarily to thagerfaand the increase in product mix of traditliynl@wer gross margin non-residential
roofing products.

Operating Expenses

2007 2006 Change
(dollars in millions)
Operating expenst $304.1 $263.¢ $40.2 15.%
Existing market: 157.¢ 162z (4.3 (2%
Operating expenses as a % of s 18.5% 17.€% 0.9%
Existing market: 16.2% 15.©% 0.4%

Our existing markets' operating expensesadsed by 2.6% or $4.3 million in 2007 while acgdimarkets' operating expenses increased
$44.5 million. The acquired markets' 2007 and 26@érating expenses included $13.6 and $8.3 miltespectively, for the amortization of
intangible assets recorded under purchase accguiitire existing markets' operating expense deglemedue primarily to reductions in payr
and related costs ($2.9 million), other general athahinistrative expenses ($1.0 million) and selliogts ($0.4 million), which include
transportation costs. These reductions resulted frost-saving measures, improved insurance claxpsreznce and from our lower sales
volume and were partially offset by increased wausle expense ($1.3 million), principally from oix sew branches opened in existing
markets since September 30, 2006, and higher daficetand amortization ($1.4 million) resultingmerily from the depreciation of new
transportation equipment. In addition, existing ke#s' general and administrative expenses bendfitk®.7 million from leveraging certain
expenses over a larger base of branches, incladingcquired markets. Total operating costs in 2686de approximately $3.6 million
incurred at the new branches, excluding allocatestisc Stock option expense increased $1.8 milkid20i07 from 2006 due to the impact of our
2007 grants.

Existing markets' operating expenses areeptage of net sales increased to 16.3% fron?d,Jpéimarily due to the lower sales and the
relatively fixed structure of our current operatiexpenses. Overall operating expenses increasE®i%66 of net sales in 2007 from 17.6% in
2006, due to the lower sales, higher operating pestentages at Shelter and Pacific, and the infpaotthe additional amortization expense
mentioned above, offset somewhat by a lower opegatdst percentage at North Coast.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $8.0 millio$28.4 million in 2007 from $19.5 million in 2006.&Vefinanced our credit facilities in
November 200tand incurred additional borrowings to finance otgjasitions, both of which increased our debt lsiete September 30,
2006. Average interest rates during 2007 also aszd from the prior year, which affected interepie@se on our variable rate-debt.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense decreased to $17.lomiili 2007 from $31.5 million in 2006. Our 2007exftive income tax rate was 40.3%,
compared to our 2006 effective income tax rate00%. The rate increase was primarily due to tt@62@versal of $1.1 million of previously
accrued income taxes related to previously filedrédurns.

Seasonality and quarterly fluctuations

In general, sales and net income are htgheig our first, third and fourth fiscal quadewhich represent the peak months of
construction and re-roofing, especially in our hegstern U.S. and
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Canada regions. Our sales are substantially lowenglthe second quarter, when we usually inculosstes. These quarterly fluctuations have
diminished as we have diversified into the southregions of the United States.

We generally experience an increase ofritory, accounts receivable and accounts payablaglthre first, third and fourth quarters of 1
year as a result of seasonality. Our borrowingegly peak during the third quarter, primarily base dated accounts payable offered by
suppliers typically are payable in April, May aneh&, while our peak accounts receivable collecttgpially occur from June through
November

We also usually experience a slowing ofemtions of our accounts receivable during our sdaguarter, mainly due to the inability of our
customers to conduct their businesses effectivelgdlement weather. We continue to attempt toecvlthose receivables which require
payment under our standard terms. We do not prasigeconcessions to our customers during this pexidhe year to incentivize sales. Also,
during the second quarter, we generally experiencdéowest availability under our senior securestarfacilities, which are based on accounts
receivable.

Certain quarterly financial data

The following table sets forth certain udied quarterly data for the fiscal years 2008 20@7 which, in the opinion of management,
reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal remy adjustments) considered necessary for a fasgntation of this data. Results of any one
or more quarters are not necessarily indicativeestilts for an entire fiscal year or of continutrgnds. Totals may not foot due to rounding.

Fiscal year 2008 Fiscal year 2007
Qtrl Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 Qtr1 Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 4
(dollars in millions, except per share data
(unaudited)

Net sales $398.¢ $304.2 $514.¢ $567.2 $380.2 $286.¢ $484.¢ $493.¢
Gross profil 91.7 68.4 120.. 139.% 91.7 66.z 107.¢ 108.Z
Income (loss) from operatiol 15.¢ (6.9 36.¢ 48.¢ 21.1 (4.2 26.7 26.3
Net income (loss $ 52 $ (81 $18: $24¢ $ 88 $ (6.3 $ 115 $11:
Earnings (loss) per she—basic $ 0.1z $(0.1f) $ 041 $ 05¢ $ 0.2C $(0.19 $ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢
Earnings (loss) per sh—fully diluted $ 0.1z $(0.1f) $ 041 $ 05t $ 0.2 $(0.19 $0.2¢ $ 0.2F
Quatrterly sales as % of year's st 22.2% 17.1% 28.8% 31.8% 23.1% 17.4% 29.2% 30.(%
Quarterly gross profit as % of year's gross pl 21.8% 16.% 28.6% 33.% 24.5% 17.7% 28.8% 28.%
Quarterly income (loss) from operations as % of'ggacome

from operation: 16.7% (7.9% 39.(% 51.¢% 30.2% (6.1)% 38.2% 37.%

Note: Qtr 4 of 2008 had one additional businessaegpared to Qtr. 4 of 2007. We incurred chargestiocl-based compensation of
approximately $1.4, $1.2, $1.2 and $1.1 milliorQir 1, Qtr 2, Qtr 3 and Qtr 4 of 2008 compared13$$1.3, $1.3 and $1.1 million in Qtr 1,
Qtr 2, Qtr 3 and Qtr 4 of 2007. Due to rounding, thlly-diluted earnings per share amounts forfthe quarters of 2007 do not add to the
annual amount of $0.56 per share.

Impact of inflation

We believe that our results of operatiomsreot materially impacted by moderate changekarirtflation rate. In general, we have been
able to pass on price increases from our vendassit@eustomers in a timely manner. Inflation andrajing prices did not have a material
impact on our operations in 2007 and 2006, althouglilid experience some price increases in ouh@ising costs
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in 2006. However, during the fourth quarter of 2088 experienced unusual and frequent price ineselsmany of our products that are
derived from petroleum-based raw materials, espeeaphalt shingles in our residential roofing gweots. We estimate that this unusual
inflation increased our 2008 sales by approxima2elyo and our fourth quarter sales by approximat&tyabove historical annual inflation for
our industry. We further estimate that this causéeimporary increase in our gross margin of apprateély 60 basis points for the fourth
quarter. We also estimate that this inflation imsexd our 2008 gross profit by approximately $11ilbam, net income by $4.7 million and ful
diluted earnings per share by $0.11.

Liquidity and capital resources

We had cash and cash equivalents of $28liomat September 30, 2008 compared to $6.5 arillit September 30, 2007. Our net
working capital was $274.8 million at September 3008 compared to $215.5 million at September 8072

2008 compared to 2007

Our net cash provided by operating actsitivas $49.6 million for 2008 compared to $63.8iomlfor 2007. Although our income from
operations increased to $94.7 million in 2008 fi®®9.8 million in 2007, we increased our inventoligsh44.1 million, especially in resident
asphalt shingles, in reaction to announced pricesases from our vendors and to ensure sufficiaitability in the regions affected by storr
Due to this build up, inventory turns were dowr2008 as compared to 2007, but we gained an adwabtabaving lower cost inventory to
sell. Average inventory per branch was up about 2Y2008 as compared to 2007, primarily from thédsup, but also due to the high
inflation in our product cost since 2007. Accourgseivable increased by $17.4 million in 2008, ity due to increased sales in th& 4
quarter, partially offset by an increase in ounlatful accounts, while the number of days outstagdor accounts receivable increased slightly
in 2008.

Prepaid expenses and other assets alsasent by $9.6 million, mainly due to higher lewaflsendor rebates caused by increased
purchases during the'8 and 4" quarters. Accounts payable and accrued expensesaged $44.1 million in 2008, mostly from the ltigh
level of inventory purchases, increases in incaames payable and performance-based pay accruals.

Net cash used in investing activities iD2Was $5.7 million compared to $143.3 million B0Z, due primarily to our acquisitions for
which we paid $120.2 in 2007. We also substanti@uced capital spending from $23.1 million in 2@0 $5.7 million in 2008 due to a
slowdown in our business during 2007 and the fiedt of 2008 and the prior-year required upgradethé¢ truck fleets of some of our recent
acquisitions.

Net cash used by financing activities w23.8 million in 2008 compared to net cash provithgdinancing activities of $83.7 million in
2007. The net cash used by financing activitiead@8 primarily reflected repayments under our rewg lines of credit and term loans. The
net cash provided by financing activities in 200irmavrily reflected net term loan borrowings undar aew credit facility, which refinanced ¢
prior revolving facilities and term loans, paymehtelated deferred financing costs, and the filramnof our acquisitions as mentioned above.

2007 compared to 2006

Our net cash provided by operating actsitivas $63.8 million for 2007 compared to $82.8iomlfor 2006. Our income from operations
decreased to $69.8 million in 2007 from $100.3ionillin 2006. Accounts receivable, excluding theefffof acquisitions, increased by
$22.0 million in 2007, due to the seasonal incredd¢orth Coast following the April acquisition eét somewhat by decreases in our other
regions. The number of days outstanding for accoreteivable, excluding North Coast, decreasetitslign 2007. Inventory levels, excluding
the effect of acquisitions, decreased by
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$13.8 million due to the intentional slowing of phases to better correlate with the lower salegiteand to enhance our year-end physical
inventory process, offset somewhat by the additioneentory at eight new branches. Average inventmar branch was down about 10% in
2007 as compared to 2006, with inventory turns|uebing North Coast, consistent with 2006. In adufitto the positive impact from decreased
inventories, prepaid expenses and other asset&xahaling the effect of acquisitions, decrease&hy million, mainly due to lower levels of
vendor rebates, while accounts payable and acexgehses, excluding the effect of acquisitionslided only $0.1 million.

Net cash used in investing activities i®2®as $143.3 million compared to $355.3 millior2D06, due primarily to our acquisitions for
which we paid $120.2 and $336.3 million, respedfiviet capital expenditures in 2007 increased 4yl $nillion compared to 2006 due to a
higher number of purchases of new transportati@hvearehouse equipment to service our larger numbleranches.

Net cash provided by financing activitieass$83.7 million in 2007 compared to $280.6 millior2006. The net cash provided by
financing activities in 2007 primarily reflects lbowings under our new term loan to refinance oigrgevolving facilities and term loans and
payment of related deferred financing costs. Thecash provided by financing activities in 2006npairily reflected borrowings under our pr
revolving lines of credit and term loans, mostly éoir acquisitions, and the net proceeds from enosdary stock offering in December 2005.

Capital Resources

Our principal source of liquidity at Septesn 30, 2008 was our cash and cash equivalentg6od $nillion and our available borrowings of
$154.8 million under revolving lines of credit. Cawrrowing base availability is determined primably trade accounts receivable, less
outstanding borrowings. Borrowings outstanding uride revolving lines of credit in the accompanybajance sheet at September 30, 2008
and 2007 were classified as short-term debt sirepaid off those borrowings subsequent to the mtigeyear-ends and there is no current
expectation of a minimum level of outstanding reeolborrowings during the subsequent 12 months.

Liquidity is defined as the current amoahteadily available cash and the ability to geteerdequate amounts of cash to meet the curren
needs for cash. We assess our liquidity in termmuoftash and cash equivalents on hand and thitydabijenerate cash to fund our operating
activities, taking into consideration the seasaralire of our business. Our cash equivalents arpised of highly liquid money market funds
which invest in commercial paper or bonds withtingpof A-1 or better, or in a US Treasury moneykeafund.

Significant factors which could affect frgdiquidity include the following:

the adequacy of available bank lines of cre

the ability to attract lor-term capital with satisfactory ternm
cash flows generated from operating activit
acquisitions; an

capital expenditure:

Our primary capital needs are for workimagital obligations and other general corporate psep, including acquisitions and capital
expenditures. Our primary sources of working capita cash from operations and cash equivalengglsmented by bank borrowings. In the
past, we have financed acquisitions initially thgbuncreased bank borrowings, the issuance of camstark and/or other borrowings. We
then repay any such borrowings with cash flows faparations. The November 2006 refinancing of eadit facilities discussed below
provided us with approximately $47 million of addital funds at the time of the closing for futurgaisitions and ongoing working capital
requirements. We have funded our past capital edipers through increased bank borrowings, inclgdiquipment financing, or through
capital leases, and then have reduced these abligatith cash flows from operations.

30




We believe we have adequate current liggimind availability of capital to fund our preseperations, meet our commitments on our
existing debt and fund anticipated growth, inclgdexpansion in existing and targeted market ak&ascontinually seek potential acquisitions
and from time to time hold discussions with acdigsi candidates. If suitable acquisition opporti@sitor working capital needs arise that w
require additional financing, we believe that dnahcial position and earnings history providerarsg base for obtaining additional financing
resources at competitive rates and terms, as weihate past. We may also issue additional siafresmmon stock to raise funds, which we
did in December 2005, or we may issue preferrecksto

Indebtedness

We currently have the following credit f@s:

. a senior secured credit facility in the U.S_;
. a Canadian senior secured credit facility; and
. two equipment financing facilities.

Senior Secured Credit Facilities

On November 2, 2006, we entered into anralee and restated seven-year $500 million U.Soseeicured credit facility and a

C$15 million senior secured Canadian credit faciith GE Antares Capital ("GE Antares") and a dgate of other lenders (combined, the
"Credit Facility"). The Credit Facility refinancate prior $370 million credit facilities that alseere provided through GE Antares. The Credit
Facility provides us with lower interest rates avadilable funds for future acquisitions and ongoiragking capital requirements. In addition,
the Credit Facility increases the allowable totalipment financing and/or capital lease financm@35 million. The Credit Facility provides
for a cash receipts lock-box arrangement that gissesole control over the funds in lock-box acceuunhless excess availability is less than
$10 million or an event of default occurs, in whitdse the senior secured lenders would have thetadake control over such funds and to
apply such funds to repayment of the senior debt.

The Credit Facility consists of a U.S. revrg credit facility of $150 million (the "US ReWweer"), which includes a sub-facility of
$20 million for letters of credit, and an initiadB%0 million term loan (the "Term Loan"). The CreBadcility also includes a C$15 million senior
secured revolving credit facility provided by GEraaa Finance Holding Company (the "Canada RevglvEhere was a combined
$154.8 million available for borrowings and $5.0limn outstanding under the US Revolver and Cama&avolver at September 30, 2008.
There were $4.3 million of outstanding standbyelettof credit at September 30, 2008. The Term legnires amortization of 1% per year,
payable in quarterly installments of approximatgly9 million, plus any required prepayments untlerExcess Cash Flow, discussed below,
and with the remainder due in 2013. The CreditlFachay also be expanded by up to an addition@0$@illion under certain conditions.
There are mandatory prepayments under the Crediiitifainder certain conditions, including the fmlNing cash flow condition:

Excess Cash Flow

On May 15 of each fiscal year, commencindgvay 15, 2008, we must pay an amount equal to 8Déie Excess Cash Flow (as defined
in the Credit Facility) for the prior fiscal yearot to exceed $7.0 million with respect to anydisgear. Based on our results for 2008 we wil
required to make a $7.0 million payment next yert that amount has been classified as short-telihaleSeptember 30, 2008.
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Interest
Interest on borrowings under the U.S. drfadiility is payable at our election at eithertioé following rates:

. the base rate (that is the higher of (a) the batsefor corporate loans quoted in The Wall Streatidal or (b) the Federal
Reserve overnight rate plug 2 of 1%) plus a margin of 0.75% for the Term Loan.
. the current LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 1.00% (#o8. Revolver loans) or 2.00% (for Term Loan).

Interest under the Canadian credit facifitpayable at our election at either of the foilogvrates:

. an index rate (that is the higher of (1) the Camadgirime rate as quoted in The Globe and Mail 2pdhe 3(-day BA Rate plu:
0.75%), or
. the BA rate as described in the Canadian facilitxg 1.00%.

The US Revolver currently carries an irgerate primarily of LIBOR plus 1% (4.43% at Sepben30, 2008), while the Canada revolver
carries an interest rate of the Canadian primeplat®0.75% (4.75% at September 30, 2008), and¢hen Loan carries an interest rate of
LIBOR plus 2% (4.78% and 5.77% for two LIBOR arrangents under the Term Loan at September 30, 2008)sed fees on the revolving
credit facilities are 0.25% per annum. Availabilitpder the revolving credit facilities is limited 85% of eligible accounts receivable,
increasing to 90% from January through April offegear. Financial covenants, which apply only ®Term Loan, are limited to a leverage
ratio and a yearly capital expenditure limitatianfallows:

Maximum Consolidated Leverage Ratio

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, m@mcing with the quarter ended December 31, 20@6Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as
defined, must not be greater than 4.00:1.0. At&uaper 30, 2008, this ratio was 2.62:1.0.

Capital Expenditures

We cannot incur aggregate Capital Expenglituas defined, in excess of three percent (3.@d%9nsolidated gross revenue for any fiscal
year.

As of September 30, 2008, we were in coamgié with these covenants. Substantially all ofamsets, including the capital stock and
assets of wholly-owned subsidiaries, secure olitigatunder the Credit Facility.

Prior Senior Secured Credit Facilities

The credit facilities in place prior to tBeedit Facility discussed above were amended toltgz 2005 and January 2006, scheduled to
mature on October 14, 2010 and consisted of a $#iion U.S. revolving line of credit and a $C15lhoin Canadian revolving line of credit,
referred to as revolvers, and term loans total®@ illion. These facilities provided for the satoek-box arrangements as under the Credit
Facility. At the time of the refinancing discussdbve, there was $227.8 million of borrowings anding under the prior revolvers.

Equipment Financing Facilities

We have two equipment financing facilitibat allow for the financing of purchased transgiioh and material handling equipment
totaling $32.9 million with $8.6 million of remaimg availability as of
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September 30, 2008. There was $24.3 million of @ment financing loans outstanding at Septembe@083, with fixed interest rates ranging
from 5.5% to 7.4%.

Contractual Obligations

At September 30, 2008, our contractualgattions were as follows:

Fiscal years
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter
Senior bank dek $15 $35 $35 $3E $3&5 ¢ 318t
Equipment financing and other( 4.4 9.2 4.9 4.4 3.4 3.3
Operating lease 23.2 19 145 111 7.5 11.2
Non-cancelable purchase obligations — — — — — —
Total $43.2 $32. $23.1 $19.C $14.« $ 333.(

(1)  The equipment financing relates to purchases déicetransportation and material handling equipméier obligations relate -
escrow payments due to sellers for recent acquisiti

2) In general, we purchase products under purchaggatibhs that are cancelable by us without costxpire after 30 day:

Capital Expenditures

Excluding acquisitions, we incurred netitagxpenditures of $5.7, $23.1 and $19.1 milier2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Over
85% of our capital expenditures have generally beade for transportation and material handling piopeint. Net capital expenditures as a
percentage of revenues increased slightly to 12007 from 1.3% in 2006, as we upgraded the @&etr acquired companies, while in 2(
we substantially reduced capital expenditures dubéd business slowdown in 2007 and the first 6B®008 and the aforementioned prior-year
required upgrades to the truck fleets of some ofrecent acquisitions. We expect future net capitplenditures as a percentage of sales to
range from 0.5% to 1.5%, dependant upon businesditians.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
Critical accounting policies

Critical accounting policies are those tha both important to the accurate portrayal cdmpany's financial condition and results and
require subjective or complex judgments, often eesalt of the need to make estimates about tleetedf matters that are inherently uncertain.

In order to prepare financial statemendd tonform to accounting principles generally atedpn the United States, commonly referre
as U.S. GAAP, we make estimates and assumptiohgftfieat the amounts reported in our financialestagnts and accompanying notes. Ce

estimates are particularly sensitive due to thigimiicance to the financial statements and thesiidiity that future events may be significantly
different from our expectations.

We have identified the following accountipglicies that require us to make the most subjeatr complex judgments in order to fairly
present our consolidated financial position andltsf operations.

33




Stock-Based Compensation

Effective September 25, 2005, we adopteteStent of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAIR3R,Share-Based Paymentssing tht
modified-prospective transition method. Prior t®@@0we accounted for stock awards granted to ereploynder the recognition and
measurement principles of Accounting Principlesfdapinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and &elat
Interpretations. As a result, no compensation expense was prdyioesognized for stock options granted to empleyafer our IPO, other
than the 2005 amortization of deferred compensalienause all such stock options granted had eseeptices equal to the market value of our
stock on the date of the grant.

Under the modified-prospective transitioathod, compensation expense recognized in 2008, 20@ 2006 included: (a) compensation
cost for all unvested share-based awards grantedtprSeptember 25, 2005, based on the grantfdatealue estimated in accordance with
SFAS 123Accounting For Stock-Based Compensatand (b) compensation cost for all share-based angmahted subsequent to
September 24, 2005, based on the grant date flaie estimated in accordance with SFAS 123R. Resiijpsior periods were not restated.
SFAS 123R also requires us to estimate forfeitureslculating the expense related to stock-basetbensation. The impact of estimating
forfeitures upon adoption was not material. In iddi SFAS 123R requires us to reflect the benefitax deductions in excess of recognized
compensation cost to be reported as both a fingrezsh inflow and an operating cash outflow upaspédn. The excess tax benefit classified
as a financing activity would have been classifischn operating inflow if we had not adopted SFASRL

Interest Rate Swaps and Collars

We enter into interest rate swaps and t@mminimize the risks and costs associated fiviincing activities, as well as to maintain an
appropriate mix of fixed-and floating-rate debteTdwap agreements are contracts to exchange \artel for fixed-interest rate payments
over the life of the agreements. The collar agregmprovide for fixedate caps and floors. Our current derivative imatents are designated
cash flow hedges, for which we record the effecgiogtions of changes in their fair value, net of fa other comprehensive income. We
recognize any ineffective portion of our hedgesannings, of which there has been none to datep@arrderivative instruments were not
designated as hedges and therefore changes irfaheialues were recorded in interest expense.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful agusifor estimated losses due to the failure ofaustomers to make required payments. We
perform periodic credit evaluations of our custosremnd typically do not require collateral. Consistith industry practices, we require
payment from most customers within 30 days, exfmales to our commercial roofing contractorsiolitwe typically require to pay in
60 days.

As our business is seasonal in certairoregiour customers' businesses are also seasales.&e lowest in the winter months and our
past due accounts receivable balance as a pereeniftégfal receivables generally increases dutiigttme. Throughout the year, we record
estimated reserves based upon our judgment offgpegstomer situations, aging of accounts andhistorical write-offs of uncollectible
accounts.

Periodically, we perform a specific anadysf all accounts past due and write off accoufarzzes when we have exhausted reasonable
collection efforts and determined that the liketidoof collection is remote based upon the followfiactors:

. aging statistics and trenc
. customer payment histor
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independent credit reports; a
. discussions with customers.

We charge these write-offs against ounveadlioce for doubtful accounts. In the past five yebasl debts averaged approximately 0.3% of
net sales. In 2008, we experienced an increas®® 0f net sales, which is still within our tolecas and reflective of the tougher economic
and credit climate.

Inventory Valuation

Product inventories represent one of orgdst assets and are recorded at net realizahle.v@ur goal is to manage our inventory so that
we minimize out of stock positions. To do this, maintain an adequate inventory of SKUs at eachdbrémased on sales history. At the same
time, we continuously strive to better manage ¢awsr moving classes of inventory. During the ye&e®, monitor our inventory levels by
branch and record provisions for excess inventdrésgd on slower moving inventory. We define paéiixcess inventory as the amount of
inventory on hand in excess of the historical usageluding items purchased in the last three monife then apply our judgment as to
forecasted demand and other factors, includingdation value, to determine the required adjustémnet realizable value. In addition, at
end of each year, we evaluate our inventory at baahch and write off and dispose of obsolete pctdur inventories are generally not
susceptible to technological obsolescence.

During the year, we perform periodic cycteints and write off excess or damaged inventomneasled. At year-end we take a physical
inventory and record any necessary additional voits.

Vendor Rebates

We account for vendor rebates in accordantteEITF Issue 02-16Accounting by a Customer (Including a Reseller)Gertain
Consideration Received from a Venddany of our arrangements with our vendors proviteuk to receive a rebate of a specified amount,
payable to us when we achieve any of a number afares generally related to the volume of purchiteas our vendors. We account for
these rebates as a reduction of the prices oflated vendors' products, which reduces the invemtost until the period in which we sell the
product, at which time these rebates reduce costlet in our income statement. Throughout the, yeaestimate the amount of rebates
receivable based upon the expected level of puesh&8e continually revise these estimates to refletual rebates earned based on actual
purchase levels. Historically, our actual rebat@sehbeen within our expectations used for our egém If we fail to achieve a measure which
is required to obtain a vendor rebate, we will hoveecord a charge in the period that we deterrthieecriteria or measure for the vendor rel
will not be met to the extent the vendor rebate astBnated and included as a reduction to cosalets

If market conditions were to change, vesduoay change the terms of some or all of theseranag) Although these changes would not
affect the amounts which we have recorded relatguidducts already purchased, it may impact ousgnoargin on products we sell or
revenues earned in future periods.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with SEXIf Accounting Bulletin 10IRevenue Recognition in Financial Statemeais amended
by Staff Accounting Bulletin 104. The SecuritiegldgExchange Commission requires that the followimgy tasic criteria must be met before
we recognize revenue:

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
delivery has occurred or services have been reddere
the seller's price to the buyer is fixed or detexabie; and
collectibility is reasonably assured.
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We generally recognize revenue at the pafisele or upon delivery to the customer's site.doods shipped by third party carriers, we
recognize revenue upon shipment since the terms@Beshipping point. Approximately 80% of our reuves are for products delivered by us
or picked up by our customers at our facilitiesjcltprovides for timely and accurate revenue rettammnm

We also ship certain products directly fritta manufacturer to the customer. We recognizgtbss revenue for these sales in accordance
with EITF Issue 99-19Reporting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus Bl@inaAgent Revenues are recognized upon notifications of
deliveries from our vendors. Delays in receivingj\@gy notifications could impact our financial téts, although it has not been material to
consolidated results of operations in the past.

We also provide certain job site deliveeyvices, which include crane rentals and rooftdjvdges of certain products, for which the
associated revenues are recognized upon compldtitve services. These revenues represent lesq #haf our net sales.

All revenues recognized are net of saleeda@ollected, allowances for discounts and es@ichegturns, which are provided for at the time
of pick up or delivery. In the past, customer retuhave not been material to our consolidated tesfibperations. All sales taxes collected are
subsequently remitted to the appropriate governmetttorities.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the liighinethod, which requires us to recognize a qurtax liability or asset for current taxes
payable or refundable and a deferred tax liabditpsset for the estimated future tax effects wifprary differences between the financial
statement and tax reporting bases of assets aiilitis to the extent that they are realizablefdbed tax expense (benefit) results from the net
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities duitie year.

We have operations in 35 U.S. states aregthrovinces in Canada and we are subject to fialtéax audits in each of these jurisdictions
and federally in both the United States and Can&ldese audits may involve complex issues, which regyire an extended period of time to
resolve. Accruals for tax contingencies requirécusmake estimates and judgments with respect taltieate outcome of potential tax audits.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized for financial kgting purposes and represents the excess of tbardrwe paid to acquire businesses over the
estimated fair value of tangible assets and idabt# intangible assets acquired, less liabiliissumed. At September 30, 2008, our goodwill
balance was approximately $354.3 million, reprasgraipproximately 33% of our total assets.

Under SFAS No.142%00dwill and Other Intangible Assetave test goodwill for impairment in the fourth qtea of each fiscal year or at
any other time when impairment indicators existafples of such indicators that would cause usstogieodwill for impairment between
annual tests include a significant change in thertass climate, unexpected competition, loss ofgegonnel or a decline in our market
capitalization below our net book value.

We determine fair value using a market apph to value our business, which consists of eperting unit (i.e. distribution of building
materials). We believe our stock price is ordinatfile best indicator of our market value, althoagkrrations in the stock market may distort
our market value and therefore other valuation odthmay be more appropriate.

If circumstances change or events occinditate that our fair market value has fallen bebmok value, we will compare the estimated
fair value of the goodwill to its book value. Ifetbook value of goodwill exceeds the estimatedvalne of goodwill, we will recognize the
difference as an impairment loss in the determamadif operating income.
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Recent accounting pronouncement

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No.,I'Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and ditegl Activities—an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 133," which requires enhancedabures about an entity's derivative and hedaatigities. In addition to disclosing the
fair values of derivative instruments and theimgaind losses in a tabular format, entities areired, to provide enhanced disclosures about
(a) how and why an entity uses derivative instrutsigtn) how derivative instruments and related leeldtems are accounted for under
Statement No. 133 and its related interpretatiand, (c) how derivative instruments and related bddtgms affect an entity's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. SMo. 161 will be effective for our financial statents in the fiscal year beginning
October 1, 2009. SFAS No. 161 does not changedtmuating for derivative instruments.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIM&(R), "Business Combinations" ("SFAS 141R") afé\S No. 160, "Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statementgmendment of ARB No. 51" ("SFAS 160"). These neamdards will significantly change t
accounting for and reporting of business combimatiansactions and noncontrolling (minority) inteein consolidated financial statements.
SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 are required to be adoptadtaneously and will be effective for our finaatstatements in the fiscal year
beginning October 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is gritdd. We believe the adoption of SFAS 141R cdwdge a significant impact on the
accounting for our future acquisitions dependinglencircumstances and the terms of the acquisitibhe adoption of SFAS 160 is not
expected to have a material impact on the finarst&kements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFASDN®, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets &mancial Liabilities—Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" ("SFAS 159FAS 159 permits companies to measure many finkinsiauments and certain other
items at fair value at specified election datesASHES59 is effective for us in the fiscal year begig October 1, 2008. We believe the adoption
of SFAS 159 will not have a material impact on ocansolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS 157"), whacldresses how fair value should be
measured when required for recognition or disclegurposes under GAAP. It also establishes a &irevhierarchy and will require expanded
disclosures on fair value measurements where atppic SFAS 157 is effective for us in the fiscahybeginning October 1, 2008. We believe
the adoption of SFAS 157 will not have a matergbact on our consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risksaasgs our on-going business operations. Our pryneiposure includes changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk relates primarilythie variablerate borrowings under our Credit Facility. The daling discussion of our interest r.
swaps and collars (see "Financial Derivatives" Wlis based on a 10% change in interest rates.€ltieanges are hypothetical scenarios used
to calibrate potential risk and do not represemtview of future market changes. As the hypothéfigares discussed below indicate, changes
in fair value based on the assumed change in gatesrally cannot be extrapolated because theaesdtip of the change in assumption to the
change in fair value may not be linear. The eftda variation in a particular assumption is cadtedl without changing any other assumption.
In reality, changes in one factor may result inres in another, which may magnify or counteragtsnsitivities.
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At September 30, 2008, we had $343.0 mildbterm loans and $5.0 million of revolving crediitstanding under our Credit Facility. C
weighted-average effective interest rate on thht,ddter considering the effect of the interest Iwaps, was 6.47% at September 30, 2008. A
hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates inctf¢ September 30, 2008, would have increasedshimarest expense on the borrowings
outstanding at that date by approximately $0.3iomill

We enter into interest rate swaps and tmaminimize the risks and costs associated fiviincing activities, as well as to maintain an
appropriate mix of fixed- and floating-rate debheTswap agreements discussed below are contraetsltange variable-rate for fixed-interest
rate payments over the life of the agreements.cblar agreements, also discussed below, providéxed-rate caps and floors. The aggregate
fair value of these swaps and collars representeslseof $7.4 million at September 30, 2008. A Hipptical increase (or decrease) of 10% in
interest rates from the level in effect at Septen®@e 2008, would result in an aggregate unrealgagd or (loss) in value of the swaps and
collars of approximately $1.1 million or ($1.2) fioh, respectively.

Financial Derivatives

As discussed above, we use interest rateadi@e instruments to manage the risk of interagt changes by converting a portion of our
variable-rate borrowings into fixedte borrowings. We had LIBOR interest rate deieainstruments outstanding in a total notional antaof
$300 million at September 30, 2008, which consisted) LIBOR interest rate swaps totaling $200lianil, expiring in April 2010, with a fixe
rate of 4.97%; b) a $50 million LIBOR interest ratlar expiring in April 2010 with a floor rate 8£99% and a cap rate of 5.75%; and c) a
$50 million interest rate collar expiring in ApBD10 with a floor rate of 3.75% and a cap rate.00%. We entered into these instruments
during the second quarter of 2007 and cancellegtioe interest rate derivative instruments that hational amounts totaling $150 million.
The increase in the total notional amount was dubé increased borrowings under our Credit Fgcilihe current derivative instruments are
designated as cash flow hedges, for which we reit@réffective portions of changes in their failueg net of tax, in other comprehensive
income. We recognize any ineffective portion of badges in earnings, of which there has been rmdate. The prior derivative instruments
were not designated as hedges and therefore chamtiesr fair values were recorded in interestenge. For a recent short period of time, the
spread or difference between LIBOR and the basededcribed above increased dramatically. HistllyiddBOR has been in the range of
100-200 basis points below the base rate and tirerefe believe the recent rise above the basevagd¢emporary and we have no current
intention of switching to base-rate based loans.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We have exposure to foreign currency exghaate fluctuations for revenues generated byoparations outside the United States, which
can adversely impact our net income and cash fl&ywproximately 6% of our revenues in 2008 were\dsdifrom sales to customers in
Canada. This business is primarily conducted irldbal currency. This exposes us to risks assatiatth changes in foreign currency that can
adversely affect revenues, net income and cashsfléve do not enter into financial instruments toage this foreign currency exchange risk.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying conseliibalance sheets of Beacon Roofing Supply, Ihe.@ompany) as of September 30, 2008
and 2007 and the related consolidated statemeimsesations, stockholders' equity and compreherniso@ne, and cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended September 30, 20@&e financial statements are the responsilofithe Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesaritial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €igat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet émdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindoecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenewntelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statementereed to above present fairly, in all materialpests, the consolidated financial position of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. at September 30, 20@B2907, and the consolidated results of its ofmeratand its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended September 30, 20@88nformity with U.S. generally accepted accaumprinciples.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting OgatdBoard (United States), Beacon
Roofing Supply, Inc.'s internal control over finglaeporting as of September 30, 2008, based iterier established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiong Organizations of the Treadway Commissiah@ur report dated December 1,
2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidéitehcial statements, effective October 1, 200&,Glompany adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. A8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes

Gt ¥ MLL?
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Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 3C  September 3C

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2008 2007
Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivale $ 26,03t $ 6,46¢
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtfgbants of $12,978 in 2008 and $7,970 in 2 283,65: 267,56:
Inventories 209,25! 165,84
Prepaid expenses and other as 45,79¢ 34,50¢
Deferred income taxe 18,12¢ 13,19¢
Total current assets 582,87!( 487,58!
Property and equipment, r 56,71: 69,75
Goodwill 354,26¢ 355,15!
Other assets, n 73,96¢ 94,167
Total assets $1,067,811 $1,006,66!

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl $ 198,42¢ $ 183,25
Accrued expense 89,75¢ 54,02(
Current portions of lor-term obligations 19,92¢ 34,77:
Total current liabilities 308,11( 272,05(
Senior notes payable, net of current por 332,50( 343,00(
Deferred income taxe 35,36: 36,49(
Long-term obligations under equipment financing and iothet of current portio 25,14 31,27(

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 10 anc

Stockholders' equity
Common stock (voting); $.01 par value; 100,000,808res authorized; 44,820,550 issued in 200¢

44,273,312 issued in 20t 44¢ 443
Undesignated Preferred Stock; 5,000,000 shares@zed, none issued or outstand — —
Additional paic-in capital 219,66¢ 211,56°
Retained earning 146,94t 106,64(
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li (362) 5,20(

Total stockholders' equity 366,70: 323,85(
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $1,067,811 $1,006,66!

See accompanying notes.
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Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended
September 30 September 30 September 30
2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands, except per share datz
Net sales $ 1,784,49! $ 1,645,78! $ 1,500,63
Cost of products sol 1,364,48 1,271,86! 1,136,501
Gross profil 420,00t 373,91 364,13
Operating expenses (includes si-based compensation expense of $4,861, $4,983,38d2Zfo
the years ended 2008, 2007, and 2006, respect 325,29¢ 304,10¢ 263,83t
Income from operatior 94,71( 69,80¢ 100,30:
Interest expens 25,90¢ 27,43¢ 19,46
Income before provision for income tay 68,80¢ 42,37 80,84(
Provision for income taxe 28,50( 17,09t 31,52¢
Net income $ 40,30¢ $ 2527¢ $ 49,31
Net income per shar
Basic $ 091 $ 057 $ 1.1t
Diluted $ 09C $ 0.5¢ $ 1.1z
Weighted average shares used in computing net iaganshare
Basic 44,346,29  44,083,91  42,903,27
Diluted 44,959,35 44,971,93  44,044,76

See accompanying notes.

42




Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity an@€omprehensive Income

Common Stock Accumulated
Additional Other
Treasury Comprehensive
Number Paid-in Retained
(Dollars in thousands, except share data) of Shares Amount _Capital Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Total Stockholders' Equity
Balances at September 25, 2( 40,367,36 $ 404 $ 142,03t $ (5159 32,05( $ 4,768 $ 178,74
Issuance of common sto 3,000,001 30 51,54¢ 51,57¢
Issuance of common stock for option excerc 848,41t 8 7,13¢ 7,147
Redemption of treasury sto (349,29) ?3) (512) 51t
Stocl-based compensatic 3,22 3,222
Net income 49,31 49,31
Foreign currency translation adjustm 1,16¢ 1,16¢
Comprehensive incomnr 50,47¢
Balances at September 30, 2( 43,866,48 43¢ 203,43: — 81,36 5,93¢ 291,16¢
Issuance of common stock for option excerc 406,82¢ 4 3,151 3,15¢
Stocl-based compensatic 4,98: 4,98
Net income 25,27¢ 25,27¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment, 513 512
Unrealized loss on financial derivatives, (1,249 (1,249
Comprehensive incorr 24,54
Balances at September 30, 2( 44,273,31 443 211,56 — 106,64( 5,20(C 323,85(
Issuance of common stock for option excerc 547,23t 5 3,241 3,24¢
Stocl-based compensatic 4,861 4,861
Net income 40,30¢ 40,30¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment, (2,390 (2,390
Unrealized loss on financial derivatives, (3,172) (3,172)
Comprehensive incomr 34,74¢
Balances at September 30, 2( 44,820,55 $ 44€ $ 219,66¢ $ — $ 146,94t $ (362 $ 366,70:

See accompanying notes.
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(In thousands)
Operating activities

Net income

Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by operating activitie!

Depreciation and amortizatic
Stoclk-based compensatic
Unrealized gain on interest rate col
Deferred income taxe

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of the &ffetbusinesses acquire

Accounts receivabl

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as
Accounts payable and accrued expel

Net cash provided by operating activit

Investing activities

Purchases of property and equipment, net of salecpds

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Net cash used in investing activiti

Financing activities

Borrowings (repayments) under revolving lines afdit
Borrowings (repayments) under senior notes payaiole othe

Proceeds from sale of common st
Proceeds from exercise of optic
Payment of deferred financing co

Income tax benefit from sto-based compensation deductions in excess of theias=d

compensation co:

Net cash provided (used) by financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase in cash and cash equival

Cash and cash equivalents (overdraft) at beginofirygar

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

Non-cash transactions:

Conversion of senior notes payable to new senitesnpayabl

See accompanying notes
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Year Ended

September 3C  September 3C  September 3C

2008 2007 2006
$ 40,30¢ $ 2527¢ $ 49,31
34,24( 32,86: 23,79:
4,861 4,98: 3,22:
— — (33)
(2,839 2,02z (1,509
(17,439 (22,049 (15,630
(44,05() 13,81t (9,120
(9,64%) 7,00¢ (4,799
44,12" (107) 37,56¢
49,56 63,81¢ 82,80¢
(5,739 (23,13)) (19,069
— (120,159 (336,27
(5,739  (143,28)  (355,33)
(20,899  (203,68) 165,77t
(6,137) 287,35! 58,36:
— — 51,57¢
1,30z 1,11¢ 1,551
= (3,087 (2,229
1,94« 2,04( 5,59¢
(23,789 83,73¢ 280,63¢
(475) 354 (14€)
19,56¢ 4,622 7,954
6,46¢ 1,847 (6,107
$ 26,03 $ 6,46¢ $ 1,841
$ — $ 66,83 $ 25,16(




Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Year Ended September 30, 2008

(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)
1. The Company
Business

Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. (the "Company8ds formed on August 22, 1997 and is incorporatddelaware. The Company distributes
roofing materials and other complementary buildimaterials to customers in 35 states in the UnitateS and 3 provinces in Canada through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Beacon Sales Actjoisj Inc., Quality Roofing Supply Company, Inced&on Roofing Supply Canada
Company, Best Distributing Co., The Roof Centec, IVest End Lumber Company, Inc., JGA Beacon, 8telter Distribution, Inc., Beacon
Pacific, Inc. and North Coast Commercial Roofingtgyns, Inc.

Estimate s

The preparation of consolidated financiateaments requires management to make estimatessanchptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosafesntingent assets and liabilities, at the ddthe consolidated financial statements. Actual
amounts could differ from those estimates.

Accounting Change

Prior to October 1, 2007, the Company re@ey income tax accruals with respect to uncettairpositions based upon Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 5, "Acgnting for Contingencies." Under SFAS No. 5, tltempany recorded a liability
(including interest and penalties) associated atluncertain tax position if the liability was bqttobable and estimable.

Effective October 1, 2007, the Company &edp-inancial Accounting Standards Board (FASBgrptetation No. 48 ("FIN 48"),
"Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an mpretation of FASB Statement No. 109," which clasfthe accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in financial statemenggordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Ineoraxes" and requires expanded
disclosure with respect to the uncertainty in inedlaxes. This Interpretation seeks to reduce thersity in practice associated with certain
aspects of measurement and recognition in accaufgimncome taxes.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal inedax and to income tax of multiple state juri§dits. The Company is open to tax audits in
the various jurisdictions until the respective stes of limitations expire. The Company is no larngigbject to U.S. federal tax examinations for
tax years prior to 2004. For the majority of statke Company is no longer subject to tax exanomatfor tax years before 2004. In connection
with the adoption of FIN No. 48, the Company anatyis filing positions in all of the federal anate jurisdictions where it is required to file
income tax returns, as well as all open tax yaatbese jurisdictions. There was no material impacthe consolidated financial statements
upon adoption of FIN No. 48.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company lwagrass unrecognized tax benefits. The Company8reong practice is to recognize intei
and penalties related to income tax matters innretax expense in the consolidated statementsesfitipns. There were no significant accr
interest and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Year Ended September 30, 2008
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

1. The Company (Continued)

penalty amounts resulting from the unrecognizenefits at September 30, 2008. The Company datesnticipate a significant change ir
unrecognized tax benefits during the next twelveths.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements idelthe accounts of the Company and its wholly-owswdabidiaries. All inter-company
transactions have been eliminated.

Fiscal Year

In September of 2007, the Company amenddayilaws to change its fiscal year-end date teSeber 30 of each year. Prior to that
amendment, the Company's fiscal year ended ondke of business on the last Saturday in Septeoftesaich year. The year ended
September 30, 2006 ("2006") was comprised of 5Xajeghile the years ended September 30, 2008 ("2@0®8 September 30, 2007 ("200
were comprised of 52 weeks. Each of the Compairgtstifiree quarters ends on the last day of thenckar month.

Industry Segment Information

Based on qualitative and quantitative datestablished by SFAS No. 13isclosures about Segments of an Enterprise anat&e|
Information, the Company has determined that it operatesmithe reportable segment, which is the wholesakeillition of building
materials.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquidestments with maturities of three months or lesswpurchased to be cash equivalents. Cash
and cash equivalents also include unsettled ceadit transactions. Our cash equivalents are coaghasmoney market funds which invest in
commercial paper or bonds with a rating of A-1 ettér or in a U.S. Treasury money market fund.

Inventories and Rebates

Inventories, consisting substantially afished goods, are valued at the lower of cost aketaCost is determined using the moving
weighted-average cost method.

The Company's arrangements with vendorisajlp provide for monthly, quarterly and/or annuabates of a specified amount of
consideration payable when a number of measures lieen achieved, generally related to a specifietutative level of calendar-year
purchases.

The Company accounts for such rebatesregdugtion of the prices of the vendor's inventamsilihe product is sold, at which time such
rebates reduce cost of sales in the consolidasdensents of operations. Throughout the year, thegaoy estimates the amount of the rebates
based upon the expected level of purchases. Theo@ontontinually revises these estimates to refletial rebates earned based on actual
purchase levels. Amounts due from vendors undeetherangements as of
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 totakad $ind $22.8 million, respectively, and are idelti in "Prepaid expenses and other
assets" in the accompanying consolidated balarestsh

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquired in conoaatiith acquisitions are recorded at fair valuefathe date of the acquisition and depreciated
utilizing the straight-line method over the remalives. All other additions are recorded at caat] depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the following estimatesgful lives:

Asset Estimated Useful Life

Buildings and improvemen 10 to 40 year

Equipment 3to 10 year

Furniture and fixture 5to 10 year:

Leasehold improvemen Shorter of the estimated useful life or the ternthef lease, considering renewal options expectée
exercised

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accosdasith Securities and Exchange Commissions (SE&fj &tcounting Bulletin 101Revenu
Recognition in Financial Statemenas amended by Staff Accounting Bulletin 104. Th&€3&quires that the following four basic criteriaish
be met before the Company recognizes revenue:

persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
delivery has occurred or services have been reddere
the seller's price to the buyer is fixed or detewabie; and
collectibility is reasonably assure

Based on these criteria, the Company gépeezognizes revenue at the point of sale or ugglivery to the customer site. For goods
shipped by third party carriers, the Company rec@grevenue upon shipment since the terms aregagBneOB shipping point.

The Company also arranges for certain ptsdio be shipped directly from the manufactureheocustomer. The Company recognizes
gross revenue for these sales in accordance wittr@ing Issues Task Force (EITF) No. 99-R@porting Revenue Gross as a Principal versus
Net as an Ager. Revenue is recognized upon notifications of aglas from the vendors.

The Company also provides certain job déitvery services, which include crane rentals mxadtop deliveries of certain products, for
which the associated revenues are recognized ugpuopletion of the services. These revenues représenthan 1% of the Company's sales.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

All revenues recognized are net of salesgaollected, allowances for discounts and eséichegturns, which are provided for at the time
of pick up or delivery. Sales taxes collected aresequently remitted to the appropriate governraatttorities.

Shipping and Handling Costs

The Company classifies shipping and hagdtiosts, consisting of driver wages and vehicleeagps, as operating expenses in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operat®mpping and handling costs were approximately, %82 in 2008, $79,272 in 2007, and
$73,534 in 2006.

Financial Derivatives

The Company enters into interest rate svaapiscollars to minimize the risks and costs asgediwith financing activities, as well as to
maintain an appropriate mix of fixed-and floatireger debt. The swap agreements are contracts tamgetvariable-rate for fixed-interest rate
payments over the life of the agreements. The cafeeements provide for fixed-rate caps and flobe Company's current derivative
instruments are designated as cash flow hedgeghich the Company records the effective portiohshanges in their fair value, net of tax
other comprehensive income. The Company recogaizgsneffective portion of the hedges in earnirgdsyhich there has been none to date.
The Company's prior derivative instruments weredestignated as hedges and therefore changes iifdineialues were recorded in interest
expense.

Concentrations of Risk

Financial instruments, which potentiallypgct the Company to concentration of credit rigkgsist principally of accounts receivable.
Company's accounts receivable are principally foustomers in the building industry located in th@teld States and Canada. Concentratic
credit risk with respect to accounts receivablayéwer, is limited due to the large number of cusgtrtomprising the Company's customer
base. The Company performs credit evaluationssafustomers; however, the Company's policy ismoeduire collateral. At September 30,
2008 and 2007, the Company had no significant conatons of credit risk.

Approximately 67% of the Company's totadtoof inventory purchases were from 9 vendors 08201 vendors in 2007, and 12 vendors
in 2006. In addition, inventory purchases exceedid® of the total cost of purchases were made #aah of three vendors in 2008.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

SFAS No. 144Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Longdd Asset§$SFAS No. 144), requires impairment losses to be
recorded on long-lived assets used in operatiorewifdicators of impairment are present and thésendnted cash flows estimated to be
generated by those assets are less than the assptsig amounts. If such assets are considerbd tmpaired, the impairment to be recogn
is the total by which the carrying amounts of teseds, if any, exceed the fair values determinewyusdiscounted cash flow model.

48




Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Year Ended September 30, 2008
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Amortizable and Other Intangible Assets

Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142, tleerpany amortizes identifiable intangible assetsistimg of non-compete agreements,
customer relationships and deferred financing dostsiuse these assets have finite lives. &étmmpete agreements are generally amortized
the terms of the associated contractual agreemamgtomer relationship assets are amortized oneglexated basis based on the expected
flows generated by the existing customers; androstdinancing costs are amortized over the livighe associated financings. Trademarks
not amortized because they have indefinite livée Company evaluates its trademarks for impairraergn annual basis based on the fair
value of the underlying assets.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized for financial @ping purposes and represents the excess purphiaseover the estimated fair value of the net
assets acquired in business combinations.

Under SFAS No.148%00dwill and Other Intangible Assetthe Company tests goodwill for impairment in tberth quarter of each fisc
year or at any other time when impairment indicaxist. Examples of such indicators, which wowddse the Company to test goodwill
impairment between annual tests, include a sigmifichange in the business climate, significankpeeted competition, loss of key personnel
or a decline in the Company's market capitalizakielow its net book value.

The Company determines fair value of itsibess using a market approach, which consista®feporting unit (i.e. distribution of
building materials). As the Company's common sisgbublicly traded, the Company believes its stpdke is the best indicator of its market
value.

If circumstances change or events occindizate that the Company's fair value has fallelow book value, the Company will compare
the estimated fair value of goodwill to its bookua If the book value of goodwill exceeds therastied fair value of goodwill, the Company
will recognize the difference as an impairment liossperating income.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective September 25, 2005, the Compalopted SFAS No. 123RBhare-Based Paymentssing the modified-prospective transition
method. Prior to 2006, the Company accounted farksawards granted to employees under the recogratid measurement principles of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 2&¢counting for Stock Issued to Employees, and &laterpretations

Under the modified-prospective transitioaethod, compensation expense recognized includesofapensation cost for all unvested
share-based awards granted prior to Septembei0R5, Pased on the grant date fair value estimateddordance with SFAS No. 123,
Accounting For Sto-Based Compensatioand (b) compensation cost for all share-based angrahted subsequent to September 24, 2005,
based on the grant date fair value estimated iordance with SFAS No. 123R.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
SFAS No. 123R also requires the Company to estifoafeitures in calculating the expense relatedttwk-based compensation.

Compensation cost arising from stock ogigranted to employees and non-employee diregecognized as expense using the straight
line method over the vesting period, which repres#me requisite service period. As of SeptembeR808, there was $4.4 million of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to stodkroptThat cost is expected to be recognized ovezighted- average period of 1.7 years.
The Company recorded stobksed compensation expense of $4.9 million ($2l8ominet of tax) or $0.06 per basic share andddeted shar
in 2008, $5.0 million ($3.0 million net of tax) 80.07 per basic share and per diluted share in,20@¥$3.2 million ($2.0 million net of tax) or
$0.05 per basic share and per diluted share in.2006

The fair values of the options under SFAS N23R were estimated at the date of the graimg tise Black-Scholes option-pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Year Ended
September 3C  September 3C  September 3C
2008 2007 2006
Dividend yield 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0%
Expected lives of options (yeal 6.0C 5.0C 5.0C
Risk-free interest rat 3.91% 4.7¢% 4.61%
Expected volatility 45% 45% 45%

Weighted average fair value of options grar $ 458 $ 10.0¢ $ 9.0¢

Expected lives of the options granted a®eld primarily on history, while expected volagkt are based on the historical volatilities of the
Company's stock and stocks of comparable publicpamies. Estimated annual forfeiture rates of 0.@%bwere utilized in the expense
recognition of options in 2008.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company reports comprehensive inconaedordance with SFAS No. 13Reporting Comprehensive Incoif&-AS No. 130). SFA
No. 130 establishes rules for the reporting angldjsof comprehensive income and its componentsufilated other comprehensive inca
(loss) as of September 30, 2008 and 2007 consiétim following:

September 3C  September 3C

2008 2007
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net ofefigct of $2,461 and $3,4 $ 4,05¢ $  6,44¢
Unrealized loss on financial derivatives, net of éffect of $2,901 and $8¢ (4,42]) (1,249
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I $ (362) $ 5,20(
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)
Net Income per Share

The Company computes net income per shaaedordance with SFAS No. 128Barnings per SharéSFAS No. 128). Under the
provisions of SFAS No. 128, basic net income penmmon share is computed by dividing net income lewieighted average number of
common shares outstanding. Diluted net income pemoon share is computed by dividing net incomehgnteighted average number of
common shares and dilutive common share equivalbatsoutstanding using the treasury stock metGodamon equivalent shares consist of
the incremental common shares issuable upon theisgef stock options.

The following table reflects the calculatiof weighted average shares outstanding for eadbdpresented:

Year Ended
September 30  September 30  September 30
2008 2007 2006
Weighte-average common shares outstanding for | 44,346,29  44,083,91  42,903,27
Dilutive effect of employee stock optio 613,06¢ 888,01 1,141,491
Weighte-average shares assuming dilut 44,959,35 44,971,93 44,044,76

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist mainly offtasd cash equivalents, accounts receivable, atspagable, borrowings under the Company's
revolving lines of credit and long-term debt. Excip the long-term debt, these instruments aretsieom in nature, and there is currently no
known trading market for the Company's debt. Theeefat September 30, 2008 and 2007, the Compdigyves the carrying amounts of its
financial instruments approximated their fair value

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes usiadiability method, which requires it to recopmia current tax liability or asset for current
taxes payable or refundable and a deferred taiitjabr asset for the estimated future tax effegftéemporary differences between the finan
statement and tax reporting bases of assets dilitiks to the extent that they are realizablefddeed tax expense (benefit) results from the net
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities dutte year.

Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of the Compafgrsign subsidiary, Beacon Roofing Supply Canaden@any ("BRSCC"), are translated into
U.S. dollars at current exchange rates as of tlenbea sheet date, and revenues and expensesresiatied at average monthly exchange rates.
Net unrealized translation gains or losses arerdecbdirectly to a separate component of stockhsl@guity, net of recognized deferred ta
Foreign currency transactions were minimal andzedlgains and losses were not material for arti@periods presented. The Company has
inter-company debt from
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conhued)

BRSCC, which has been considered as long-termirfanéial reporting purposes since repayment iplatned or anticipated in the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the balance isk@dto market each period with a correspondingyaeitorded as a separate component of
stockholders' equity. In addition, during 2006 @empany executed a $4 million short-term note BRSCC that was repaid in 2007.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No.,I'Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and ditegl Activities—an Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 133," which requires enhancsdasures about an entity's derivative and hedaatigities. In addition to disclosing the
fair values of derivative instruments and theimgaénd losses in a tabular format, entities areired to provide enhanced disclosures about
(a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruisigip) how derivative instruments and related leeldtems are accounted for under
Statement No. 133 and its related interpretatiand,(c) how derivative instruments and related kddtgms affect an entity's financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. SA0. 161 will be effective for the Company in fieeal year beginning October 1, 2009.
SFAS No. 161 does not change the accounting favatere instruments.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFASIMG(R), "Business Combinations" ("SFAS 141R") aR@S No. 160, "Noncontrolling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statementgraendment of ARB No. 51" ("SFAS 160"). These neamdards will significantly change t
accounting for and reporting of business combimattiansactions and noncontrolling (minority) intgeein consolidated financial statements.
SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 are required to be adoptedtaneously and will be effective for the Companyhe fiscal year beginning
October 1, 2009. Earlier adoption is prohibitede Tompany believes the adoption of SFAS 141R chale: a significant impact on the
accounting for its future acquisitions dependingfmcircumstances and the terms of the acquisitibhe adoption of SFAS 160 is not
expected to have a material impact on the finast@kements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS @, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets &inancial Liabilities—Including an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" ("SFAS 158FAS 159 permits companies to measure many finkinstauments and certain other
items at fair value at specified election datesASE59 will be effective for the Company in thechi$ year beginning October 1, 2008. The
Company believes the adoption of SFAS 159 willtmote a material impact on its consolidated findrsteements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASING, "Fair Value Measurements” ("SFAS 157"), whacliresses how fair value should be
measured when required for recognition or disclegurposes under GAAP. It also establishes a &irevhierarchy and will require expanded
disclosures on fair value measurements where alpic SFAS 157 is effective for the Company infteeal year beginning October 1, 2008.
The Company believes the adoption of SFAS 157mnaitthave a material impact on its consolidatedrfoiea statements.
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3. Common Stock
Secondary Offering

On December 16, 2005, the Company soldmwigon shares of common stock in a public offeratgb27.50 per share (prior to the three-
for-two stock split discussed below). Selling stogklers also sold shares in the offering. The netgeds to the Company from this offering,
after all associated expenses, totaled approxign&gel.6 million and were used for the pay downesfalver borrowings. The Company did not
receive any proceeds from the sales by the sedtiockholders.

Three-for-Two Stock Split

In May 2006, the Company's Board of Direstbeclared a three-for-two common stock split,olihivas paid in the form of a stock
dividend on June 12, 2006 to the stockholders afnek at the close of business on May 31, 2006. Atingly, all share and per share data and
the related capital amounts for all periods presg:neflect the effects of this split, except femiis that are otherwise designated. In additior
Company's treasury stock was retired in May 2006.

4. Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Assets

Goodwill was $354,269 and $355,155 at Saper 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, of which $228 and $223,546, respectively, can be
amortized for income tax purposes in 2008 and 208&.Company's goodwill decreased by $886 in 20D08ayily due to a change in foreign
currency translation. In 2007, goodwill increasgdbb5,873 due to an addition of $64,405 from adtjaiss described in Note 5 and $1,468
from foreign currency translation.

Intangibles and other assets, includedherdong-term assets, consist of the following:

September 3C  September 3C

2008 2007
Amortizable intangible asse
Non-compete agreemernr $ 515 $ 515
Customer relationshiy 88,74¢ 88,74¢
Beneficial lease arrangemel 61C 61C
Deferred financing costs and ott 7,34¢ 7,97¢
101,85: 102,48:.
Less: accumulated amortizati 42,13¢ 26,27
59,71t 76,20t
Unamortizable trademarl 9,75( 9,75(
Other asset 4,50( 8,21z
Total other intangible asse $ 7396 $ 94,167

Amortization expense related to intangddsets amounted to approximately $15,859, $150%L$9,671 in 2008, 2007, and 2006,
respectively. The intangible lives range from oméifteen years and the weighted average remaiifengvas 12.4 years at September 30, 2008.
Estimated future annual

53




Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Year Ended September 30, 2008
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

4. Goodwill, Intangibles and Other Assets (Continud)

amortization amounts for the above intangible asastof September 30, 2008 were $12,995, $10,4588%, $6,859, $5,426, and $15,398 for
2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 and thereafter, réisphc

5. Acquisitions
North Coast Commercial Roofing Systems, Inc.

On April 2, 2007, the Company purchased?4@ the outstanding stock of North Coast ComméR@ofing Systems, Inc. and certain of
its subsidiaries and affiliates (together "Northa€tj), a Twinsburg, Ohio-based distributor of cometed roofing systems and related
accessories, with 16 locations in eight U.S. stateke time of the acquisition. North Coast haghiohes in Ohio, lllinois, Indiana, Kentucky,
Michigan, New York, Pennsylvania and West Virginthis purchase was funded with cash on hand alatigfunds borrowed under the
Company's U.S. revolving line of credit. North Colaad net sales of $235 million (unaudited) for year ended March 31, 2006. A total of
$7.9 million of cash remains in escrow at Septen30e2008 for post-closing indemnification claimgth $3.4 million included in other
current assets and accrued expenses and $4.5miiltituded in other long-term assets and liabgifllie Company has included the results of
operations for North Coast from the date of actjoisiand applied purchase accounting, which, alwitly certain purchase price adjustments,
resulted in recorded goodwill of $62.3 million ar fpelow (in 000's). The Company finalized the pase accounting in the third quarter of
2008.

Accounts receivabl $ 31,70¢
Inventories 13,34¢
Prepaid expenses and otl 982
Property and equipme 4,15(
Deferred taxe (20,400
Accounts payable and accrued expet (19,189
Net asset 20,59¢
Non-compete 3,30(¢
Customer relationshif 29,55(
Goodwill 62,28:
Purchase pric $115,73(

Unaudited pro forma net sales for the yated September 30, 2007, assuming the acquisitidiorth Coast had occurred at the
beginning of the year were $1,744 million. Pro farmet income and net income per share for thabgevere not presented as the impact o
North Coast acquisition on net income was not nielte

Other Recent Acquisitions

On May 18, 2007, the Company purchasediceaissets of Wholesale Roofing Supply, a singtation distributor of residential and
commercial roofing products located in Knoxvilleennessee. Additionally, on November 23, 2005, the@any purchased certain assets of
Easton Wholesale
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5. Acquisitions (Continued)

Company, Inc., a single location distributor ofltirig products located in Easton, Maryland. Prarfaiinformation has not been provided for
these acquisitions since the impact to the findrstéiements was not considered material.

6. Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets
The significant components of prepaid exgsrand other assets are as follows:

September 3C  September 3C

2008 2007
Vendor rebate $ 36,300 $ 22,79
Other 9,49¢ 11,71¢

$ 4579¢ $ 34,50¢

7. Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment, net, consist ofdHewing:

September 3C  September 3C

2008 2007
Land $ 2,15¢ $ 2,19¢
Buildings and leasehold improveme 16,65 16,32t
Equipment 95,77 95,23¢
Furniture and fixture 10,09: 10,11¢
124,67¢ 123,87
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortiz 67,96 54,12«

$ 56,712 $ 69,75!

Depreciation and amortization of propemy &quipment totaled $18,381, $17,792 and $14/12008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
8. Accrued Expenses
The significant components of accrued espsrare as follows:

September 3C  September 3C

2008 2007

Uninvoiced inventory receip $ 23,04« $ 15,93
Employesrelated accrual 19,90: 13,52¢
Income taxes payab 15,29: —
Other 31,51¢ 24,56(

$ 89,75 $ 54,02
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9. Financing Arrangements
Senior Secured Credit Facilities

On November 2, 2006, the Company enteredan amended and restated seven-year $500 niilliSnsenior secured credit facility and a
C$15 million senior secured Canadian credit faciith GE Antares Capital ("GE Antares") and a dgate of other lenders (combined, the
"Credit Facility"). The Credit Facility refinancate prior $370 million credit facilities that alseere provided through GE Antares. The Credit
Facility provides the Company with lower interesties and available funds for future acquisitions @mgoing working capital requirements. In
addition, the Credit Facility increases the alloleaotal equipment financing and/or capital leasaricing to $35 million. The Credit Facility
provides for a cash receipts lock-box arrangemattdgives the Company sole control over the fundedk-box accounts, unless excess
availability is less than $10 million or an evehtefault occurs, in which case the senior seclgrders would have the right to take control
over such funds and to apply such funds to repaywfehe senior debt.

The Credit Facility consists of a U.S. ey credit facility of $150 million (the "US Reweer"), which includes a sub-facility of
$20 million for letters of credit, and an initigB%0 million term loan (the "Term Loan"). The CreBdcility also includes a C$15 million senior
secured revolving credit facility provided by GEraaa Finance Holding Company (the "Canada RevglvEhere was a combined
$154.8 million available for borrowings and $5.0limn outstanding under the US Revolver and Cama&avolver at September 30, 2008.
There were $4.3 million of outstanding standbyelettof credit at September 30, 2008. The Term legnires amortization of 1% per year,
payable in quarterly installments of approximatgly9 million, plus any required prepayments untlerExcess Cash Flow and the remaind
due in 2013. The Credit Facility may also be expahidy up to an additional $200 million under certzonditions. There are mandatory
prepayments under the Credit Facility under certaimditions, including the following cash flow catidn:

Excess Cash Flow

On May 15 of each fiscal year, commencindgvay 15, 2008, we must pay an amount equal to 8D#le Excess Cash Flow (as defined
in the Credit Facility) for the prior fiscal yearot to exceed $7.0 million with respect to anydisgear. Based on our results for 2008 the
Company will be required to make a $7.0 million pent next year and that amount has been classifiesthort-term debt at September 30,
2008.

Interest
Interest on borrowings under the U.S. driadiility is payable at the Company's electiorittter of the following rates:

. the base rate (that is the higher of (a) the batsefor corporate loans quoted in The Wall Streatidal or (b) the Federal
Reserve overnight rate plus 2 of 1%) plus a margin of 0.75% for the Term Loan.

. the current LIBOR Rate plus a margin of 1.00% ({#o8. Revolver loans) or 2.00% (for Term Loz
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9. Financing Arrangements (Continued)
Interest under the Canadian credit facitpayable at the Company's election at eith¢hefollowing rates:

. an index rate (that is the higher of (1) the Camagirime rate as quoted in The Globe and Mail @dhe 3-day BA Rate plu:
0.75%), or

. the BA rate as described in the Canadian facilitxg 1.00%.

The US Revolver currently carries an irgerate primarily of LIBOR plus 1% (4.43% at Sepben30, 2008), while the Canada revolver
carries an interest rate of the Canadian primeplat®0.75% (4.75% at September 30, 2008), and¢hen Loan carries an interest rate of
LIBOR plus 2% (4.78% and 5.77% for two LIBOR arrangents under the Term Loan at September 30, 2008)sed fees on the revolving
credit facilities are 0.25% per annum. Availabilitpder the revolving credit facilities is limited 85% of eligible accounts receivable,
increasing to 90% from January through April offegear. Financial covenants, which apply only ®Term Loan, are limited to a leverage
ratio and a yearly capital expenditure limitatianfallows:

Maximum Consolidated Leverage Ratio

On the last day of each fiscal quarter, m@mcing with the quarter ended December 31, 20@6Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as
defined, must not be greater than 4.00:1.0. At&uaper 30, 2008, this ratio was 2.62:1.0.

Capital Expenditures

The Company cannot incur aggregate Calpitpenditures, as defined, in excess of three pe(8dd0%) of consolidated gross revenue
any fiscal year.

As of September 30, 2008, the Company wasinpliance with these covenants. Substantidllgfahe Company's assets, including the
capital stock and assets of wholly-owned subsiggaisecure obligations under the Credit Facility.

Senior Notes Payable
Senior notes payable consisted of the \fiolig:

September 3C  September 3C

2008 2007
Senior notes payable to commercial lenders, degjiral quarterly payments of principal of $0.9 roiliwith the

remainder due in 2013, plus required prepaymenuatsand interest at the base rate, as definesl Opli5% or

LIBOR plus 2.0% (4.78% and 5.77% at September 8B082through November 20: $ 343,000 $ 347,37
Less current portio 10,50( 4,37¢

$ 332,50 $ 343,00(
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9. Financing Arrangements (Continued)
Prior Senior Secured Credit Facilities

The credit facilities in place prior to t8eedit Facility discussed above were amended toligr 2005 and January 2006, scheduled to
mature on October 14, 2010 and consisted of a $#iion U.S. revolving line of credit and a $C15lhoin Canadian revolving line of credit,
referred to as revolvers, and term loans total®@ illion. These facilities provided for the satoek-box arrangements as under the Credit
Facility. At the time of the refinancing discusssbve, there was $227.8 million of borrowings aurtging under the prior revolvers.

Equipment Financing Facilities

The Company has two equipment financingif@s that allow for the financing of purchasedrnsportation and material handling
equipment totaling $32.9 million with $8.6 milliaf remaining availability as of September 30, 20Di8ere was $24.3 million of equipment
financing loans outstanding at September 30, 2008, fixed interest rates ranging from 5.5% to 7.4%

Other Information
The Company made interest payments untlénahcing arrangements totaling $26,770 in 20883,272 in 2007, and $18,463 in 2006.

Annual principal payments for all outstargiborrowings for each of the next five years drateafter as of September 30, 2008 are as
follows (other obligations relate to escrow paynsathie to sellers for recent acquisitions):

Equipment  Revolving
Senior Securet
Financing Lines of

Fiscal year Credit Facility & Other Credit Total

2009 $ 10,50C $ 4,44¢ $4,977 $ 19,92¢
2010 3,50( 9,157 — 12,65\
2011 3,50( 4,89¢ — 8,39¢
2012 3,50( 4,35( — 7,85(
2013 3,50( 3,401 — 6,901
Thereaftel 318,50( 3,33¢ — 321,83t
Subtotal 343,00( 29,59: 4,977  377,56¢
Less current portio 10,50( 4,44¢ 4,97 19,92¢
Total lon¢-term debt $ 332,500 $2514: $ — $357,64

10. Leases

The Company operates in leased facilitiggch are accounted for as operating leases. Heetetypically provide for a base rent plus
estate taxes. Certain of the leases provide fal&sicg rents over the lives of the leases anderpénse is recognized over the terms of those
leases on a straight-line basis. The Company lehses buildings from its former Chairman (and eutrdirector) for an aggregate expense of
approximately $0.5 million in 2008 and $0.6 millisn2007 and 2006.
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10. Leases (Continued)

At September 30, 2008, the minimal rentehmitments under all non-cancelable operating Ead#h initial or remaining terms of more
than one year are as follows:

Operating
Year ending Septembe! Leases
2009 $23,25:
2010 19,59:
2011 14,73¢
2012 11,09¢
2013 7,47¢
Thereaftel 11,21
Total minimum lease paymer $87,36¢

Rent expense was $24,823 in 2008, $23,92P07 and $17,817 in 2006. Sublet income was irari@@for these years.
11. Stock Options
Stock Option Plans

The Company is currently making stock-basedrds under its 2004 Stock Plan, which was adiopteSeptember 21, 2004. The 2004
Stock Plan allows for the granting of up to 5.0%iom shares (inclusive of 1.75 million additiorstiares approved by stockholders under the
plan on February 7, 2008) of Common Stock in thenfof stock options or stock awards to key empleyaed members of the Board of
Directors. The key terms of the grants are detegthiy the Company's Board of Directors.

The 1998 Stock Plan allowed for the gramtifoptions to purchase up to 3.1 million shafreS@mmon Stock. Options were generally
allowed to be exercised beginning 18 months afterdate of grant and will terminate ten years ftbengrant date. No further awards will be
made under the 1998 Stock Plan.

In the event of a change in control of @@mpany, all outstanding options are immediateltee.
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11. Stock Options (Continued)

Information regarding the Company's stopkanms, adjusted for the 2006 stock split, is sumizea below (not in thousands):

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Remaining
Average  Contractual Aggregate
Number Exercise Intrinsic
of Shares Price Life Value
(in Millions)
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 2,951,990 $ 3.8¢
Grantec 723,65 19.91
Exercisec (848,41¢) 1.8:
Cancelec (26,57°) 16.61
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 2,800,65! 8.47
Grantec 736,25( 21.8¢
Exercisec (406,829 2.74
Cancelec (84,96)) 20.3¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 3,045,12 12.1¢
Grantec 759,02: 9.34
Exercisec (547,239 2.3¢
Cancelec (174,829 17.2¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2( 3,082,081 $ 12.9( 7C $ 14.¢
Vested or Expected to Vest at September 30, 2,993,76! $ 12.8¢ 7C $ 14.¢
Exercisable at September 30, 2( 1,820,49° $ 11.7¢ 6.C $ 10.<

There were options available for grantpuachase 2,494,724 shares of Common Stock und@0tve Stock Plan at September 30, 2008.
The Company granted 783,100 additional options utide2004 Stock Plan to management in October .ZD08 weighted-average grant date
fair values of stock options granted during 2008)2and 2006 were $4.55, $10.06 and $9.08, respéctiThe intrinsic value of stock options
exercised during 2008 and 2007 was $7.2 million®®d million, respectively. At September 30, 200& Company had $12.6 million of
excess tax benefits available for potential detetax write-offs related to option accounting.
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11. Stock Options (Continued)

Details regarding options to purchase comstock outstanding as of September 30, 2008 il ag/s:

Weighted

Options Range of Average Contractual Options
Qutstanding Exercise Prices  Life in Years Exercisable
630,05. $0.3(-$2.72 4.t 630,05
55,00( $7.5(-$8.04 9.2 0
698,31{ $8.1¢-$10.87 9.C 30,00(
406,44 $10.8¢-$13.5¢ 6.1 406,44«
68,25( $13.6(-$16.3( 6.5 66,25(
509,45t $16.3-$19.0Z 7.1 366,36:
683,06: $21.7+-%$24.4¢ 7.8 300,39(
31,500 $24.4¢%$27.17 7.5 21,00(
Totals 3,082,08! 1,820,49

Special CEO Options Grant

The Company granted stock options to iesilent and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) in OctoP@03 under an executive securities
agreement. The grant included options to purch@5¢050 shares of common stock at the then fairevahd was scheduled to vest over two
years. In January 2004, the Company and the CE@dendethe special purchase option agreement toaserthe number of shares that cc
be purchased under the options to 612,366 shaweb.8Bnendment did not change the exercise pricgtasiual term or vesting of the original
award. Under this grant, the exercise price mugtaie in cash, unless the Company permits otherWise options expire on October 20, 2013
and became fully vested after the completion ofGbenpany's IPO. These options were not grantedrithdeCompany's 1998 Stock Plan or
2004 Stock Plan. Options to purchase 150,000 a@@@2 shares under this grant were exercised irmber 2005 and August 2008,
respectively, leaving 242,366 and 462,366 optiartstanding under the special CEO grant at SepteB8he2008 and 2007, respectively.

12. Benefit Plans

The Company maintains defined contribupitans covering all full-time employees of the Compaho have 90 days of service and are
at least 21 years old. An eligible employee mayteie make a before-tax contribution of betweend®d 100% of his or her compensation
through payroll deductions, not to exceed the ahlima# set by law ($15,500, $20,500 if over agef602008). The Company currently
matches the first 50% of participant contributitinsited to 6% of a participant's gross compensainaximum Company match is 3%).
Additional amounts associated with profit sharingrevcontributed in the three years presented anddireduled to be contributed in 2009 for
2008 as well. All Company contributions are subjedhe discretion of management and the boardre€idrs. The combined expense for this
plan and a similar plan for our Canadian employeas $5,775 in 2008, $4,485 in 2007 and $4,579 0620

61




Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Contirad)
Year Ended September 30, 2008
(dollars in thousands, except per share data or agherwise indicated)

12. Benefit Plans (Continued)

The Company also contributes to an extquaakion fund for certain of its employees who bglto a local union. Annual contributions
were $109, $116, and $82 in 2008, 2007, and 2@3pectively.

13. Income Taxes

The income tax provision consists of théofeing:

Fiscal year
2008 2007 2006

Current:

Federal $23,44: $ 8,76( $24,48¢

Foreign 1,98( 2,48( 2,51(

State 5,91¢ 3,83: 6,03¢

31,33¢ 15,07¢ 33,03:

Deferred:

Federal (2,44%) 1,62¢ (1,2172)

Foreign (26) (22) 39

State (367) 417 (331

(2,839 2,02z (1,509
$28,50( $17,09; $31,52¢

The following table shows the principalseas for the difference between the effective inedax rate and the statutory federal incom:
rate:

Fiscal Year
2008 2007 2006
Federal income taxes at statutory | 35.0% 35.0(% 35.00%
State income taxes, net of federal ber 5.24 6.0¢ 4.5¢
Foreign income taxes in excess of 3 0.04 0.21 0.1z
Non-deductible meals and entertainm 0.5C 1.1¢€ 0.3¢
Tax reserve (0.0§) (0.77) (1.1%
Other 0.7z (1.41)) 0.07
Total 41.42% 40.3%% 39.0(%
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13. Income Taxes (Continued)
The components of the Company's defernesktare as follows:

September 3C  September 3C
2008 2007

Deferred tax liabilities
Excess tax over book depreciation and amortiz $ 38,64¢ $ 37,89¢

Foreign currency translation adjustm 2,461 3,47
Other 30C —
41,41( 41,36¢

Deferred tax asset

Deferred compensatic 6,04¢ 4,871
Allowance for doubtful accoun 5,091 3,951
Accrued vacation & othe 2,31z 1,66(
Unrealized loss on financial derivativ 2,901 84¢€
Inventory valuatior 7,821 6,73¢
24,17¢ 18,07

Net deferred income tax liabilitie $ 17,23¢ $ 23,29

As of September 30, 2008, there was arlablaitax benefit of $677 related to tax creditrgfmrwards. Of this total, $440 represents an
available benefit from foreign tax credit carryfamds and $237 represents an available benefit $tate NOL carryforwards. The Company
has recorded a valuation allowance to fully reséovéhese amounts since future recognition is ttage As of September 30, 2007, there was
an available tax benefit of $144 related to taxitrearryfowards, of which $51 represented an atde benefit from foreign tax credit
carryforwards and $93 represented an availablefivémen state NOL carryforwards. The Company rekst a valuation allowance to fully
reserve for these amounts since future recognitias uncertain.

The Company made tax payments of $10,37D@8, $20,986 in 2007, and $19,296 in 2006. Ir82Q007, and 2006, the Company had
reductions in income taxes payable of $2,873, $2&81 $6,566, respectively, as a result of stotloogxercises.

The Company has operations in 35 U.S. statel three provinces in Canada and is subjeaktaudits in each of these jurisdictions and
federally in both the United States and Canadasd laeidits may involve complex issues, which mayirecan extended period of time to
resolve. The Company has provided for its estirn&taxes payable in the accompanying financiabstants. Additional taxes are reasonably
possible, however the amounts cannot be estimathisaime. Effective October 1, 2007, the Compadgpted FIN No. 48 (see Note 1).
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14. Related-Party Transactions

As mentioned in Note 10, the Company ledise=e buildings from its former Chairman and cotrirector for an aggregate of
approximately $0.5 million in 2008 and $0.6 millian2007 and 2006.

15. Contingencies

The Company is subject to loss contingenpigsuant to various federal, state and localrenmental laws and regulations; however, the
Company is not aware of any reasonably possibkekthat would have a material impact on its re@flbperations, financial position, or
liquidity. Potential loss contingencies include gibte obligations to remove or mitigate the effemsthe environment of the placement,
storage, disposal or release of certain chemicathmr substances by the Company or by other patticconnection with its acquisitions, the
Company has been indemnified for any and all knemvironmental liabilities as of the respective daitacquisition. Historically,
environmental liabilities have not had a matemapact on the Company's results of operations, Gi@hposition or liquidity.

The Company is subject to litigation frome to time in the ordinary course of business, éav the Company does not expect the re
if any, to have a material adverse impact on isilte of operations, financial position or liquidit

16. Geographic and Product Data

In accordance with the enterprise-wide ldsare requirements of SFAS No. 131, the Compagsographic and product information is as
follows:

Year Ended
September 30, 2008 September 30, 2007 September 30, 2006
Property Property Property

and and and

Income Equipment, Income Equipment, Income Equipment,
Net before Net before Net before

Revenues taxes net Revenues taxes net Revenues taxes net
u.sS. $1,676,73! $63,10: $ 50,89: $1,539,61 $35,15- $ 62,30: $1,397,15! $73,77¢ $ 52,767
Canada 107,76( 5,70 5,821 106,16¢ 7,22 7,45C 103,48. 7,061 6,52¢
Total $1,784,49! $68,80¢ $ 56,71: $1,645,78! $42,37¢ $ 69,75 $1,500,63 $80,84( $ 59,29:

Net revenues from external customers bgyecbgroup:

Year Ended
September 3C  September 3C  September 3C
2008 2007 2006
Residential roofing produc $ 756,32, $ 691,69 $ 731,70«
Non-residential roofing produc 725,90( 605,85’ 448,04.
Complementary building produc 302,27: 348,23! 320,89:
Total $1,784,49! $1,645,78" $1,500,63
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17. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The activity in the allowance for doubtddcounts consisted of the following:

Balance a

beginning
Provision Balance at
Fiscal Year of year Additions  Write-offs  end of yeai
September 30, 20( $ 7,97C $10,95: $(5,946 $12,97¢
September 30, 20( $ 502 $ 7,91¢ $(4,966) $ 7,97(C
September 30, 20( $ 4,102 $ 4,65¢ $(3,740) $ 5,02(

18. Financial Derivatives

The Company uses derivative financial instents for hedging and non-trading purposes to geiia exposure to changes in interest
rates. Use of derivative financial instruments éddging programs subjects the Company to certais,r@ich as market and credit risks. Market
risk represents the possibility that the valuehef derivative instrument will change. In a hedgielgtionship, the change in the value of the
derivative is offset to a great extent by the cleaimgthe value of the underlying hedged item. Gresk related to derivatives represents the
possibility that the counterparty will not fulfilhe terms of the contract. The notional, or contralc amount of the Company's derivative
financial instruments is used to measure intemebetpaid or received and does not represent thg@ay's exposure due to credit risk. The
Company's current derivative instruments are watlinterparties rated very highly by nationally retiagd credit rating agencies.

The Company utilizes interest rate derixatnstruments to manage the risk of interestehmges by converting a portion of its variable-
rate borrowings into fixedate borrowings. There were interest rate derieaitistruments outstanding in a total notional an@fii$300 millior
at September 30, 2008, which consisted of: a)éstaiate swaps totaling $200 million, expiring iprih2010, with a fixed rate of 4.97%; b) a
$50 million interest rate collar expiring in Ap8iD10 with a floor rate of 3.99% and a cap rate.85%; and c) a $50 million interest rate collar
expiring in April 2010 with a floor rate of 3.75%@a cap rate of 6.00%. The combined fair valuthefagreements resulted in a recorded
liability of approximately $7.4 million at Septenmi@0, 2008, which was determined based on curr¢etédst rates and expected future trends.
The Company entered into these instruments duhiegécond quarter of 2007 and cancelled the prierdst rate derivative instruments that
had notional amounts totaling $150 million. Thereut derivative instruments are designated as ftasthedges, for which the Company
records the effective portions of changes in tfairvalue, net of tax, in other comprehensive meo Any ineffective portion of the hedges is
recognized in earnings, of which there has beer nonlate. The prior derivative instruments weredsesignated as hedges and therefore
changes in their fair values were recorded in egeexpense.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

1. Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation wf chief executive officer and chief financial a#r, evaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineduledRL3a-15(e) and 15kb(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)f &eptember 3l
2008. Based on this evaluation, our chief executifieer and chief financial officer concluded thas of September 30, 2008, our disclosure
controls and procedures were (1) designed to erisatenaterial information relating to Beacon RagfSupply, Inc., including its consolida
subsidiaries, is made known to our chief executiffieer and chief financial officer by others withihose entities, particularly during the
period in which this report was being prepared @)ceffective, in that they provide reasonable emste that information required to be
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or sititumder the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ierded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's sud@d forms.

2. Internal Control over Financial Reporting
(a) Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for estahlishnd maintaining adequate internal control diremcial reporting. Internal control over
financial reporting is defined in Rule 13a-15(f)1d¥d-15(f) promulgated under the Securities ExchangeoAd934 as a process designed b
under the supervision of, the company's principatcative and principal financial officers, and etisd by the company's board of directors,
management and other personnel, to provide reakoaaturance regarding the reliability of financégorting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles and theduthose policies and procedures that:

. Pertain to the maintenance of records that in regtdle detail accurately and fairly reflect the sactions and dispositions of t
assets of the company;

. Provide reasonable assurance that transactiome@aled as necessary to permit preparation ofi¢iahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptiess and that receipts and expenditures of tinepamy are being made ot
in accordance with authorizations of managementdimretttors of the company; and

. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preventimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effetite financial statements.

Our internal control system was designegrtvide reasonable assurance to our managemetaand of Directors regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of publishedraial statements. All internal control systemsmatter how well designed, have inherent
limitations which may not prevent or detect missta¢nts. Therefore, even those systems determinesl eéffective can provide only reason:
assurance with respect to financial statement patdipa and presentation. Projections of any evalnaif effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadtgibecause of changes in conditions, or thaddlyeee of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
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Our management assessed the effectivehess imternal controls over financial reportingasSeptember 30, 2008. In making this
assessment, we used the criteria set forth indat€ontrol-Integrated Framework issued by the Cdatemof Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on our assessweitielieve that, as of September 30, 2008, darrial control over financial
reporting is effective based on those criteria.

Our Independent Registered Public Accognfimm has issued a report on the Company's inteordrol over financial reporting. This
report appears below.

(b)  Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Folic Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.

We have audited Beacon Roofing Supply,'$rinternal control over financial reporting asSaptember 30, 2008, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organiratiaf the Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s mamagnt is responsible for maintaining effective ing control over financial reporting, a
for its assessment of the effectiveness of intezaatrol over financial reporting included in thecampanying Management's Annual Repor
Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the compsumternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wWithdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgetr8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetigfenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©tst audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etést#ig and evaluating the design and operatifegtfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancesdliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanaigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatggaparation of financial statements in accoréawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasaabturance regarding prevention or timely deteatfainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventletect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Beacon Roofing Supply, In@intained, in all material respects, effectiveiinal control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 2008, based on the COSO criteria.
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We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Beacon Roofing $upm. as of September 30, 2008 and 2007 andelhéed consolidated statements of
operations, stockholders' equity and compreherisaa@me, and cash flows for each of the three yieattse period ended September 30, 2008
and our report dated December 1, 2008 expressadduralified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 1, 2008

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over finil reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) 46d-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Ac
1934) occurred during the fiscal quarter ended&eper 30, 2008 that has materially affected, oeasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
We have no information to report pursuaritém 9B.
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PART IlI

This part of our Form 10-K, which includésms 10 through 14, is omitted because we w#l @iéfinitive proxy material pursuant to
Regulation 14A not more than 120 days after theeclaf our year-end, which proxy material will indéuthe information required by Items 10
through 14 and is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES
(a) (1) Financial Statements
The following financial statements of owr@pany and Report of the Independent RegistereticPdtxounting Firm are included in
Part II, Item 8 of this Report:

. Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimm

. Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 38,&G02007

. Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeaded September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006

. Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' EquityHeryears ended September 30, 2008, 2007 and
. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraied September 30, 2008, 2007 and 2006

. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2) Financial Statement Schedule

Financial statement schedules have beetiaahtiecause they are either not applicable orgteired information has been disclosed ir
financial statements or notes thereto.

3) Exhibits
Exhibits are set forth on the attached leiximdex.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, réegistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.
BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC.

(REGISTRANT)

By: /s/ DAVID R. GRACE

David R. Grace
Chief Financial and Accounting Offic

Date: December 1, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seéeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidrelow by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and orddtes indicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE

/sl ROBERT R. BUCK

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer December 1, 2008
Robert R. Bucl
/s DAVID R. GRACE
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer a@tuef Accounting Officer December 1, 2008
David R. Grace
/s ANDREW R. LOGIE
Director December 1, 2008
Andrew R. Logie
/s/ H. ARTHUR BELLOWS, JF
Director December 1, 2008
H. Arthur Bellows, Jr
/s/ JAMES J. GAFFNEY
Director December 1, 2008
James J. Gaffne
/s PETER M. GOTSCH
Director December 1, 2008
Peter M. Gotscl
/s/ WILSON B. SEXTON
Director December 1, 2008
Wilson B. Sextor
/s STUART A. RANDLE
Director December 1, 2008

Stuart A. Randlt
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT
EXHIBIT
NUMBER_
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of lmratfpn of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. (incorpocaterein by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s anmeglort on Form 1-K for the year ended September 25, 2(
3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Beacon Roofing [Suppe. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8a2Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.'s annual report on Formr-K for the year ended September 30, 2C
4.1 Form of Specimen Common Stock Certificate of BedRonfing Supply, Inc. (incorporated herein by refeze to Exhibit 4.1 to
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s Registration Stateroert-1 (Registration No. 3:-116027))

10.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, deted November 2, 2006, among Beacon Sales Adiguisinc., as borrowe
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc., as one of the Guaranthe Lenders and L/C Issuers party thereto,Gewnkeral Electric Capital
Corporation, as Administrative Agent and Collatékgkent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10t Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc.'s current report on Fort-K filed November 3, 2006

10.z Fourth Amended and Restated Loan and Security Augat dated as of November 2, 2006, among BeacofirigoSupply Canada
Company, GE Canada Finance Holding Company anfirthecial institutions party thereto (incorporategreference to
Exhibit 10.2 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc's cutmaport on Form -K filed Novembei3, 2006).

10.2 Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2004 Stock F3a&mck Option Agreement for all employees, inclgd@xecutive officers who
are not directors.

10.2 Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2004 Stock F3&mck Option Agreement for non-employee direc{orsorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Form-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 200¢

10.5 Form of Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. 2004 Stock F&mck Option Agreement for employee directo

10.€ Employment Agreement dated as of October 20, 2§Gsd between Robert Buck and Beacon Sales Aciquisinc. d/b/a Beacon
Sales Company (incorporated herein by referen&ehibit 10.2 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s Régiton Statement on
Form -1 (Registration No. 3:-116027))*

10.7 Amendment to Employment Agreement dated as of Mgy2004 by and between Robert Buck and Beacon 3algsisition, Inc.
d/b/a Beacon Sales Company (incorporated herenefieyence to Exhibit 10.3 to Beacon Roofing Suppiyg,'s Registration
Statement on Form-1 (Registration No. 3:-116027))*

10.¢ Amendment dated February 15, 2006 to the Employrgreaement between Robert R. Buck and Beacon 3alggisition, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1@.Beéacon Roofing Supply Inc.'s current report omi8-K filed February 21,
2006)*
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER

10.¢ Amendment to Employment Agreement dated OctobeRQ07 by and between Robert Buck and Beacon Balgsisition, Inc.
d/b/a Beacon Sales Company (incorporated herenefleyence to Exhibit 10.1 to Beacon Roofing Suppig,'s current report on
Form ¢-K filed on October 26, 2007).

10.1C Executive Securities Agreement dated as of Oct@abeP003 by and between Beacon Roofing Supply, Rabert Buck and Code,
Hennessy & Simmons I, L.P. (incorporated hergirréference to Exhibit 10.5 to Beacon Roofing Syppic.'s Registration
Statement on Form-1 (Registration No. 3:-116027))

10.11 Amendment to Executive Securities Agreement daseaf danuary 28, 2004 by and between Beacon Ro8fipgply, Inc., Robert
Buck and Code, Hennessy & Simmons lll, L.P. (incogbed herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Bedgoofing Supply, Inc.'s
Registration Statement on Forr-1 (Registration No. 33-116027))

10.1z 1998 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by refereadexhibit 4.1 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s Régition Statement on Form S-

8 (Registration No. 3:-119747))*



10.1: Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Plan (incorpotaegn by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Beacon Rupfupply, Inc.'s current
report on Form -K filed on February 11, 2008

10.1¢ Amended and Restated Special Purchase Option Agrgetated January 28, 2004 by and between Beacoiing&upply, Inc. an
Robert Buck (incorporated herein by reference tbilkik10.10 to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc.'s Regisbn Statement on Form 55-
(Registration No. 3:-116027))*

10.1t Description of Management Cash Bonus Plan (incatedrherein by reference to Exhibit 10 to BeacQuiarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended December 31, 20(

21 Subsidiaries of Beacon Roofing Supply, |
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registd?ablic Accounting Firn
31.1 CEO certification pursuant to Section 302 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2 CFO certification pursuant to Section 302 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 CEO certification pursuant to Section 906 of theb&ae-Oxley Act of 200z

32.2 CFO certification pursuant to Section 906 of theb8ae-Oxley Act of 200z

* Compensatory plan or arrangeme
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Exhibit 10.3
BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC. 2004 STOCK PLAN
As Amended and Restated Effective October 22, 2007
STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
A Stock Option (the "Option") granted, ds o , by Beacon Roofing Supphc., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), to

the employee named in the attached Option letter'®ptionee"), for common stock, par value $.0dghare (the "Common Stock"), of the
Company shall be subject to the following terms eoditions:

1. Stock Option Grant Subject to the provisions set forth herein tiiedterms and conditions of the Beacon Roofingo8ypnc. 2004
Stock Plan, As Amended and Restated Effective @ct@B, 2007 (the "Plan™), a copy of which is atethereto and the terms of which are
hereby incorporated by reference, and in consideratf the agreements of the Optionee herein pealithe Company hereby grants to the
Optionee an Option to purchase from the Companwytimeber of shares of Common Stock, at the purchase per share, and on the schec
set forth in the attached Option letter. Any IncemStock Option is intended to be an incentivelstoption within the meaning of
Section 422A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

2. Acceptance by Optionee.The exercise of the Option is conditioned ujismcceptance by the Optionee in the space prdvide
therefor at the end of this Agreement and the netfian executed copy of this Agreement to theceftif the General Counsel no later
than

3. Exercise of Option. Written notice of an election to exercise aoytipn of the Option shall be given by the Optioneehis
personal representative in the event of the Opésngeath, in accordance with procedures estatlish¢he Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company (the "Committegs)in effect at the time of such exercise.

At the time of exercise of the Option, panhof the purchase price for the shares of Com&took with respect to which the Option is
exercised must be made by one or more of the fatigwnethods: (i) in cash, or (ii) in cash receifen a brokerdealer to whom the Option:
has submitted an exercise notice and irrevocaBteuictions to deliver the purchase price to the gamy from the proceeds of the sale of st
subject to the Option.

If applicable, an amount sufficient to shtiall minimum Federal, state and local withhotgdiax requirements prior to delivery of any
certificate for shares of Common Stock must alsmapany the exercise. Payment of such taxes camalde by a method specified above,
and/or by directing the Company to withhold sucimber of shares of Common Stock otherwise issugie exercise of the Option with a 1
market value equal to the amount of tax to be vetthh

4. Exercise Upon Termination of EmploymentExcept as set forth in Section 6 below, if @@ionee's employment with the Comp:
and all affiliates terminates for any reason othan death, disability or retirement, the then eggiortion of the Option shall continue to be
exercisable until the earlier of the 90th day atiter date of the Optionee's termination or the thegeOption expires by its terms.

In the event of the Optionee's death, disalor retirement during employment with the Coamy or any affiliate, the outstanding portion
of the Option shall become fully vested on sucle daid shall continue to be exercisable until thrbegaf the first anniversary of the date of
the Optionee's death, disability or retirementher date the Option expires by its terms. For thippse (i) "disability” means (as determinec
the Committee in its sole discretion) the inabitfythe Optionee to engage in any substantial ghadtivity by reason of any medically
determinable physical or mental impairment whichxXpected to result in death or disability or whitets lasted or can be expected to last for a
continuous period of not less than 12 months, @ntf¢tirement” means the Optionee's terminatimt employment with the Company and
all affiliates without cause (as determined by @mnmittee in its sole discretion) when the Optioise@5 or older. (Full vesting of




an Incentive Stock Option may result in all or pafrthe Option being treated as a NQnalified Stock Option in accordance with Sectioh &
the Plan.)

5. Option Not Transferable The Option may be exercised only by the Oméduring his lifetime and may not be transferréatio
than by will or the applicable laws of descent @tribution or pursuant to a qualified domestiatiins order. The Option shall not otherwise
be assigned, transferred, or pledged for any perpdstsoever and is not subject, in whole or in, parattachment, execution or levy of any
kind. Any attempted assignment, transfer, pledgencumbrance of the Option, other than in accardavith its terms, shall be void and of no
effect.

6. Surrender of or Changes to Agreementn the event the Option shall be exercised lole, this Agreement shall be surrendered to
the Company for cancellation. In the event thisi@pshall be exercised in part, this Agreementldebelivered by the Optionee to the
Company for the purpose of making appropriate rmighereon, or of otherwise reflecting, in suchnmer as the Company shall determine
change in the number of shares.

7. Forfeiture of Options If an Optionee's employment with the Companitoosubsidiaries terminates due to Cause, dhef
Optionee's Options, including the vested and umegortions, shall be forfeited as of the dateuochstermination. For purposes hereof,
"Cause" shall mean: (a) conviction of a felony aeetad with Optionee's employment with the Companiyscsubsidiaries,

(b) misappropriation or theft of property of ther@uany or its subsidiaries, (c) gross negligenoeithiul misconduct in the performance of
employee's duties, (d) any act of fraud againsCimmpany or its subsidiaries, and (e) any unauthdrdissemination of confidential
information or trade or business secrets of the @y or its subsidiaries.

8. Administration The Option shall be exercised in accordandk stch administrative regulations as the Commatesd! from time
to time adopt.

9. Governing Law This Agreement, and the Option, shall be colest, administered and governed in all respectgadd by the
laws of the State of Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is delied by the Company as of the day of
BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC
AGREED AND ACCEPTEL

OPTIONEE

Date:
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Exhibit 10.5

[Employee—Directors]
BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC. 2004 STOCK PLAN
As Amended and Restated Effective October 22, 2007

STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

A Stock Option (the "Option") granted bya&®en Roofing Supply, Inc., a Delaware corporatitie (Company"), to the employee/Direc
named in the attached Option letter (the "Optiopdet common stock, par value $.01 per share'@wmmon Stock"), of the Company shall
be subject to the following terms and conditions:

10. Stock Option Grant. Subject to the provisions set forth herein tredterms and conditions of the Beacon Roofing Supipc.
2004 Stock Plan, As Amended and Restated Effe@steber 22, 2007 (the "Plan™), a copy of whichttaehed hereto and the terms of which
are hereby incorporated by reference, and in cengihn of the agreements of the Optionee herawiged, the Company hereby grants to the
Optionee an Option to purchase from the Companytimber of shares of Common Stock, at the purcpase per share, and on the schec
set forth in the attached Option letter. Any indemstock option is intended to be an incentivelstoption within the meaning of Section 422A
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986.

11. Acceptance by Optionee.The exercise of the Option is conditioned ujtsacceptance by the Optionee in the space prdvide
therefor at the end of this Agreement and the netfian executed copy of this Agreement to thecefif the General Counsel no later
than

12. Exercise of Option. Written notice of an election to exercise aoytipn of the Option shall be given by the Optioneehis
personal representative in the event of the Opésngeath, in accordance with procedures estatlish¢he Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors of the Company (the "Committe@3 in effect at the time of such exercise.

At the time of exercise of the Option, payrhof the purchase price for the shares of Com&took with respect to which the Option is
exercised must be made by one or more of the fatigwethods: (i) in cash, or (ii) in cash receiyieain a brokerdealer to whom the Option:
has submitted an exercise notice and irrevocaBteuictions to deliver the purchase price to the gamy from the proceeds of the sale of st
subject to the Option.

If applicable, an amount sufficient to sBtiall minimum Federal, state and local withhoggltax requirements prior to delivery of any
certificate for shares of Common Stock must alsmaxpany the exercise. Payment of such taxes camlde by a method specified above,
and/or by directing the Company to withhold sucimbar of shares of Common Stock otherwise issugte exercise of the Option with a 1
market value equal to the amount of tax to be vetthh

13. Exercise Upon Termination of EmploymentExcept as set forth in Section 6 below, if @@ionee's employment with the
Company and all affiliates terminates for any reasther than death, disability or retirement (afngel below), and in connection therewith
Optionee's service on the Board terminates, thetksted portion of the Option shall continue takercisable until the earlier of the 90th day
after the date of such termination of employmertherdate the Option expires by its terms.

In the event of the Optionee's death calallgy during employment with the Company or affffliate, or in the event of the Optionee's
retirement, and in connection therewith his sereicghe Board terminates, the outstanding portfadhe® Option shall become fully vested on
such date and shall continue to be exercisabléthetiearlier of the first anniversary of the dafehe Optionee's death, disability or retirement
or the date the Option expires by its terms.

In the event the Optionee's employment withCompany and all affiliates terminates for eegson other than death, disability or
retirement, and the Optionee's service on the Boamtinues thereafter, the Option shall continueetst and remain exercisable in accordance
with the Option




letter. If the Optionee's service on the Board sghently terminates, then (i) if termination is daeleath, disability or retirement, the
outstanding portion of the Option shall becomeyfuktsted on such date and shall continue to becisadaie until the earlier of the first
anniversary of the date of the Optionee's deatfahility or retirement or the date the Option egpiby its terms, and (ii) if the termination is
for any reason other than death, disability oreatient, the then vested portion of the Option staitinue to be exercisable until the earlier of
the 90th day after the date of such terminatiotherdate the Option expires by its terms.

For purposes of this Section 3, (i) "disiapi means (as determined by the Committee isde discretion) the inability of the Optionee to
engage in any substantial gainful activity by reegbany medically determinable physical or meitgdairment which is expected to result in
death or disability or which has lasted or canjgeeted to last for a continuous period of not thss 12 months, and (ii) "retirement" means
(A) while the Optionee is employed, the Optionéefmination from employment with the Company aricilliates without cause (as
determined by the Committee in its sole discretishgn the Optionee is 65 or older; or (B) while @gtionee is a non-employee Director,
retirement in accordance with the Company's retetpolicy for Directors.

14. Option Not Transferable. The Option may be exercised only by the Opt&odwering his lifetime and may not be transferrdueot
than by will or the applicable laws of descent @tribution or pursuant to a qualified domestiatiins order. The Option shall not otherwise
be assigned, transferred, or pledged for any perpdstsoever and is not subject, in whole or in, parattachment, execution or levy of any
kind. Any attempted assignment, transfer, pledgencumbrance of the Option, other than in accardavith its terms, shall be void and of no
effect.

15. Surrender of or Changes to Agreementn the event the Option shall be exercised liobe, this Agreement shall be surrendered to
the Company for cancellation. In the event thisi@pshall be exercised in part, this Agreementldeabelivered by the Optionee to the
Company for the purpose of making appropriate ranahereon, or of otherwise reflecting, in suchnmer as the Company shall determine
change in the number of shares.

16. Forfeiture of Options. If an Optionee's employment with the Companitosubsidiaries terminates due to Cause, ahef t
Optionee's Options, including the vested and umegortions, shall be forfeited as of the dateuochstermination. For purposes hereof,
"Cause" shall mean: (a) conviction of a felony ceeted with Optionee's employment with the Companiyscsubsidiaries, (b)misappropriati
or theft of property of the Company or its subdiiig, (c)failure to observe any policy of the Companits subsidiaries, including the
Company's Code of Conduct, (d)gross negligenceilfuMmisconduct in the performance of employedigies, (e)any act of fraud against the
Company or its subsidiaries, and (f) any unautaridissemination of confidential information ordeaor business secrets of the Company or
its subsidiaries.

17. Administration. The Option shall be exercised in accordanck stith administrative regulations as the Commétesg! from time
to time adopt.

18. Governing Law. This Agreement, and the Option, shall be comsty administered and governed in all respectsruanttby the
laws of the State of Delaware.

19. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreementlelivered by the Company as of
BEACON ROOFING SUPPLY, INC
AGREED AND ACCEPTEL

OPTIONEE

Date:
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EXHIBIT 21
REGISTRANT'S SUBSIDIARIES

The following table sets forth, at DecembgP008, the Registrant's significant operatingssdiaries and other associated companies and
their respective incorporation jurisdictions. Thegistrant owns 100% of the voting securities oheafcthe subsidiaries listed below. There are
no subsidiaries not listed in the table, which vdouh the aggregate, be considered significant.

State of
Active Subsidiaries Incorporation
Beacon Sales Acquisition, Int Delaware
Quality Roofing Supply, Inc Delaware
Beacon Canada, Inc Delaware
Best Distributing Co. North Carolini
The Roof Center, Inc Delaware
West End Lumber Company, In Delaware
Beacon Roofing Supply Canada Comp. Nova Scotie
JGA Beacon, Inc Delaware
Shelter Distribution, Inc. Delaware
Beacon Pacific, Inc Delaware
Beacon Sales Company, In Massachusett
North Coast Commercial Roofing Systems, | Ohio
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by refeeeincthe Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos:1ZB879, 333-119747 and 333-150773) of
Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. of our reports datedddeber 1, 2008 with respect to the consolidateahfiral statements of Beacon Roofing
Supply, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal cardver financial reporting of Beacon Roofing Slyppnc., included in the Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended September 30, 2008.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Boston, Massachusetts
December 1, 2008
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Robert R. Buck, certify that
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-BBe&con Roofing Supply, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@gponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaaeinmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 1, 2008

/s/ ROBERT R. BUCK

Robert R. Buck
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic
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EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, David R. Grace, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-BBe&con Roofing Supply, Inc.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omététe a material fact necessar

make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts.under which such statements were made, nkadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsatimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer and | a@gponsible for establishing and maintaining disete controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@&))%(d internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrami &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneggh

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantsl@lsire controls and procedures and presentedsimeiport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougredis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsadnternal control over financial reporting tloatturred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repod) ltas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportinggdan

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | balisclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorteyhal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdtaaeinmittee of registrant's board of directorsggersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesiethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofimancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 1, 2008

/s/ DAVID R. GRACE

David R. Grace
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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EXHIBIT 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bea Roofing Supply, Inc. (the "Company") on FormKL.@or the year ended September 30,
2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the "Report”), I, RoBerBuck, the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-@xeyf 2002, that:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
of the Company.

/sl ROBERT R. BUCK

Robert R. Buck
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

December 1, 200

A signed original of this written statemeagjuired by Section 906, or other document autb&timig, acknowledging, or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed foitiinvthe electronic version of this written statamh required by Section 906, has been
provided to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and willre&ined by Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and furadéto the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@0OO2 and shall not, except to the extent
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be @ekfited by the Company for purposes of Sectionflie Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
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EXHIBIT 32.2
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Bea Roofing Supply, Inc. (the "Company") on FormKL.@or the year ended September 30,
2008, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the "Report”), |, DaRidsrace, the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1380adopted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes-@xeyf 2002, that:

(1)  The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; and

2) The information contained in the Report fairly gets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations
of the Company.

/s/ DAVID R. GRACE

David R. Grace
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

December 1, 200

A signed original of this written statemeagjuired by Section 906, or other document autb&timig, acknowledging, or otherwise
adopting the signature that appears in typed foitiinvthe electronic version of this written statamh required by Section 906, has been
provided to Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and willre&ined by Beacon Roofing Supply, Inc. and furadéto the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

This certification accompanies the Reparspant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A@0OO2 and shall not, except to the extent
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be @ekfited by the Company for purposes of Sectionflie Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.
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